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 Note 31 Employee Benefits disclosures under Accounting Standards-15



















(i) Defined contribution plans










The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.  The Company recognised ` 45,52,031/- (Year ended 31 March, 2020 ` 46,80,340/- for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. 

















(ii) Defined benefit plans










The Company offers the employee benefit in the form of Gratuity only to its employees:








The following table sets out the funded status of the defined benefit schemes and the amount recognised in the financial statements: 

















Particulars

 Year ended 31 March, 2021 

 Year ended 31 March, 2020 






 ` 

 ` 






Components of employer expense

 

 






Current service cost

                   5,993,397 

              5,874,046 






Past service cost-Vested

                              -   

                         -   






Past service cost-Unvested

                              -   

                 283,325 






Interest cost

                   2,861,748 

              3,094,144 






Expected return on plan assets

                   2,858,615 

              2,910,957 






Actuarial (losses)/gains

                    (323,150)

              3,296,029 






Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

                 6,319,680 

            3,044,529 






Actual contribution and benefit payments for year 

 

 






Actual benefit payments

                   6,535,008 

              4,452,188 






Actual contributions

                   3,044,529 

              5,237,490 






Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet 

 

 






Present value of defined benefit obligation

                 49,313,351 

             46,778,422 






Fair value of plan assets

                 42,993,671 

             43,733,893 






Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet

               (6,319,680)

           (3,044,529)






Unrecognised Past Service Cost

                              -   

 






Net Liability 

               (6,319,680)

           (3,044,529)






Net Liability is bifurcated as follows:

 

 






Non-Current

                      221,582 

                         -   






Current

                   6,098,098 

              3,044,529 

















Particulars

 Year ended 31 March, 2021 

 Year ended 31 March, 2020 






 ` 

 ` 






 

 

 






Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the year 

 

 






Present value of DBO at beginning of the year

                 46,778,422 

             45,483,138 






Unfunded portion of Gratuity Obligation (Previous years)

                              -   

                         -   






Current service cost 

                   5,993,397 

              5,874,046 






Interest cost 

                   2,861,748 

              3,094,144 






Actuarial (losses)/gains

                    (214,792)

              3,220,718 






Benefits paid

                   6,535,008 

              4,452,188 






Present value of DBO at the end of the year

               49,313,351 

          46,778,422 






 

 

 






Change in fair value of assets during the year 

 

 






Plan assets at beginning of the year

                 43,733,893 

             39,962,323 






Expected return on plan assets

                   2,858,615 

              2,910,957 






Actual company contributions

                   3,044,529 

              5,237,490 






Actuarial gain / (loss)

                    (108,358)

                   75,311 






Benefits paid

                   6,535,008 

              4,452,188 






Plan assets at the end of the year

               42,993,671 

          43,733,893 






 

 

 






Actual return on plan assets

                            2,966,973 

                      2,835,646 






 

 

 






Composition of the plan assets is as follows:

 

 






Government bonds

                 42,993,671 

             43,733,893 






Actuarial assumptions

 

 






Discount rate

6.55%

6.55%






Expected return on plan assets

6.55%

6.55%






Salary esclation

8.80%

8.80%






Attrition

7%-15%

7%-15%

















1.The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.






2.The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant factors.






3.The management has already contributed amount of Rs. 63.20 Lakh into the Gratuity fund set up by the LIC before income tax filling of return of FY 2020-21.


 Effect of a 1% change in health care cost 










Particulars

 ` 

 ` 


 31 March, 2021

  31 March, 2020 


 Increase by 1% 

 Decrease by 1% 

 Increase by 1% 

 Decrease by 1% 


 



 

 

 


Aggregate current service and interest cost

                       88,551 

                   88,551 

                 89,682 

                  89,682 


Closing balance of obligation

                 49,401,902 

             49,224,800 

           46,868,104 

            46,688,740 













Experience adjustments 










Particulars

 2019- 2020 

 2nd prior year 

 3rd prior year 




 ` 

 ` 

 ` 




Present value of DBO

                 46,778,422 

             45,483,138 

           39,409,567 




Fair value of plan assets

                 43,733,893 

             39,962,323 

           29,621,936 




Funded status Deficit

                  (3,044,529)

             (5,520,815)

           (9,787,631)




 



 

 




Particulars

 For the year ended 31 March, 2021 

 For the year ended 31 March, 2020 






 

 

 






Actuarial assumptions for long-term compensated absences

 

 






Discount rate

6.55%

6.55%






Expected return on plan assets

6.55%

6.55%






Salary escalation

8.80%

8.80%






Attrition (Refer point no.3)

7%-15%

7%-15%






1.The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.


2.The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant factors.


3. The management estimates of the level of attrition in the company over the long term. Estimated withdrawls rates should take into account the broad economic  


   overlook, type of sector the company operates in and measures taken by the management to retain/relieve the employees..
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 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>Notes forming part of the financial statements</p></td></tr><tr><td><p />Note  1 Corporate Information<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Batlivala & Karani Securities India Pvt. Ltd. was incorporated on May 19, 1998 and engaged in Stock broking, Merchant Banking, Mutual Fund ditribution and Investment Advisory services beisdes holding investment in Subsidaries and Associates. The group business consists of finacial services, distribution of financial products and insurance busniess carried out by seperate subsidaries & associates. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Note 2 Significant accounting policies <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) The accompanying financial statements are prepared under historical cost conventions in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the applicable accounting standards referred to under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 as issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time. The disclosures are made in accordance with the requirements of Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards as applicable to the company.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) The Company is following mercantile system of accounting and recognizes Income & Expenditure on Accrual basis except for Dividend Income, Bonus, and certain other retirement benefits other than gratuity to employees etc. which are accounted on cash basis.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />b)   Use of Estimates<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses during the period. Differences between actual and estimates are recognized in the period in which the result are known or are materialised.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />c) Investments<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Investments are classified into Current investments and long- term investments.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Long-term Investments have been accounted at cost. Provision for diminution in value of investment is made only if the decline in the value of investment is permanent in nature.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii) Current Investments are stated at lower of cost or net realizable value. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />d)      Tangible Fixed Assets<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Tangible Fixed Assets have been stated at actual cost of acquisition or constructions, including incidental expenses. They are stated at historical cost. Actual cost is inclusive of installation cost, freight, duties, taxes, financing cost and other incidental expenses but net of Cenvat/GST.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />e)      Impairment of Assets<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company, at each balance sheet date, assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of any assets and/or cash generating unit. If such indication exists, assets are impaired by comparing carrying amount of each assets and/or cash generating units to the recoverable amount being higher of the net selling price or value in use. Value in use are determined from the present value of the estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of the assets. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />f)      Intangible Assets & Amortization<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less amortization.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) These intangible assets are amortized as below:<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Stock Exchange Membership Card : 10 Years<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Computer Software : 3 Years<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Website: 5 Years<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />g)    Depreciation <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) Tangible Assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset are added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. <br></br><br></br>Depreciation is provided on tangible asset on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset or as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.<br></br><br></br>Management’s estimates of the useful lives of certain assets are as follows: <br></br><br></br>a. Air Conditioners: 15 years<br></br>b. Electrical Appliances: 15 years<br></br>c. Furniture and Fixtures: 15 years<br></br>d. Art and Paintings: 15 years<br></br><br></br>For the above class of assets, based on internal assessment, management believes that the useful lives as given above best represents the period over which the asset would be used.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) Individual Assets costing less then Rs.5,000/- have been depreciated in full in the year of purchase. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />h)    Retirement Benefits<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i)   Gratuity:<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year. However, the company through its Trust has taken a policy with LIC/Birla Sun Life to cover the gratuity liability of the employees. The difference between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year-end and the balance of funds with LIC/Birla Sun Life is provided for as liability in the books.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii)  Provident Fund:<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund and Pension Fund is charged against revenue on accrual basis.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(iii) Leave Encashment:<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Company does not extend's the benefit of leave encashment to its employees while in service as well as on retirement from service of the company.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i)    Revenue Recognition<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />All revenues including interest are recognised on accrual basis except Dividend income, which is recognized on cash basis.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />j)  Miscellaneous Expenditure<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Miscellaneous expenditure represents only deferred revenue expenses. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) Deferred revenue expenditure is written off over the period of benefit, whenever the exact period of benefit can be determined. Other deferred revenue expenditures, where period of benefit cannot be exactly determined, are written off over a period of 5 to 10 years.  <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />k)   Provisions & Contingences<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjust to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(iii) Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contigent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the assets and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />l)   Taxes on Income <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Current Tax: - Provision for Current Tax is computed as per the provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and any excess or shortfall in the provisioon of the taxation of earlier years is adjusted with the Reserve & Surplus.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) Deferred Tax:- Deferred tax is recognized in accordance with Accounting standard 22 on “Accounting for Taxes on income” issued by, The Institute of chartered Accountants of India. Tax expenses comprise of both current and deferred tax. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities using the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax asset and liabilities are recognised for future tax consequences attributable to timing differences between taxable income and accounting income that are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and are measured using relevant enacted tax rates.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(iii) MAT Credit Entitlement :-Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />m)   Earning Per Share<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting Standard-20 Earnings per share prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />n)  Foreign Exchange Transactions<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. All monetary items, which comprises of Monetary Assets and Monetary Liabilities are translated at the year end at the closing rates prevailing on the last day of the year. Any foreign exchange gain or loss arising from the settlement of transaction or translation of monetary items at the year end is recognized as income and expense, as the case may be, for the year.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii) Non – monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non – monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />o) Leases<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Finance Leases, which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risk and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value or present value of the minimum Lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii)Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged directly against income. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />iii) Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct cost are capitalized.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />iv) If there is no reasonable certainty that the company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assets or the lease term.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />v) Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases.  Operating Lease payments are recognised as expenses in the Profit & Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />p) CENVAT <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Cenvat benefit is accounted by reducing the purchase cost of Services and Fixed Assets for which Cenvat credit is available as per the Cenvat Credit Rules as amended from time to time.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii) Cenvat Credit is availed only on payment basis and is adjusted against the Service Tax liability. No Cenvat is availed where payment is outstanding. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />iii) The credit of Cenvat, which is not availed in the current financial year is carried forward and availed in the subsequent year.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Q) Cash & Cash Equivalents <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, balances with bank in current account (other than earmarked), fixed  <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Deposits with bank (free from any encumbrances), cheques on hand and balances in foreign currency and prepaid cards.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />R) Segments<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conirmity with the accounting policies adopted for the  <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />company. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilites are indentified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the  <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />operating activities of the segments. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relates to the company as a whole<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />and are not allocable to segments on a resonable basis, are included under "unallocated". <p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
 <table><tbody><tr><td><p></p></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /><p> </p><p />Note 31 Employee Benefits disclosures under Accounting Standards-15<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) Defined contribution plans<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.  The Company recognised ` 45,52,031/- (Year ended 31 March, 2020 ` 46,80,340/- for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) Defined benefit plans<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company offers the employee benefit in the form of Gratuity only to its employees:<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The following table sets out the funded status of the defined benefit schemes and the amount recognised in the financial statements: <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p /> Year ended 31 March, 2021 <p /></td><td><p /> Year ended 31 March, 2020 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Components of employer expense<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Current service cost<p /></td><td><p />                   5,993,397 <p /></td><td><p />              5,874,046 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Past service cost-Vested<p /></td><td><p />                              -   <p /></td><td><p />                         -   <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Past service cost-Unvested<p /></td><td><p />                              -   <p /></td><td><p />                 283,325 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Interest cost<p /></td><td><p />                   2,861,748 <p /></td><td><p />              3,094,144 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Expected return on plan assets<p /></td><td><p />                   2,858,615 <p /></td><td><p />              2,910,957 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actuarial (losses)/gains<p /></td><td><p />                    (323,150)<p /></td><td><p />              3,296,029 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss<p /></td><td><p />                 6,319,680 <p /></td><td><p />            3,044,529 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actual contribution and benefit payments for year <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actual benefit payments<p /></td><td><p />                   6,535,008 <p /></td><td><p />              4,452,188 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actual contributions<p /></td><td><p />                   3,044,529 <p /></td><td><p />              5,237,490 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Present value of defined benefit obligation<p /></td><td><p />                 49,313,351 <p /></td><td><p />             46,778,422 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Fair value of plan assets<p /></td><td><p />                 42,993,671 <p /></td><td><p />             43,733,893 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet<p /></td><td><p />               (6,319,680)<p /></td><td><p />           (3,044,529)<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Unrecognised Past Service Cost<p /></td><td><p />                              -   <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net Liability <p /></td><td><p />               (6,319,680)<p /></td><td><p />           (3,044,529)<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net Liability is bifurcated as follows:<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Non-Current<p /></td><td><p />                      221,582 <p /></td><td><p />                         -   <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Current<p /></td><td><p />                   6,098,098 <p /></td><td><p />              3,044,529 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p /> Year ended 31 March, 2021 <p /></td><td><p /> Year ended 31 March, 2020 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the year <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Present value of DBO at beginning of the year<p /></td><td><p />                 46,778,422 <p /></td><td><p />             45,483,138 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Unfunded portion of Gratuity Obligation (Previous years)<p /></td><td><p />                              -   <p /></td><td><p />                         -   <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Current service cost <p /></td><td><p />                   5,993,397 <p /></td><td><p />              5,874,046 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Interest cost <p /></td><td><p />                   2,861,748 <p /></td><td><p />              3,094,144 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actuarial (losses)/gains<p /></td><td><p />                    (214,792)<p /></td><td><p />              3,220,718 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Benefits paid<p /></td><td><p />                   6,535,008 <p /></td><td><p />              4,452,188 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Present value of DBO at the end of the year<p /></td><td><p />               49,313,351 <p /></td><td><p />          46,778,422 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Change in fair value of assets during the year <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Plan assets at beginning of the year<p /></td><td><p />                 43,733,893 <p /></td><td><p />             39,962,323 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Expected return on plan assets<p /></td><td><p />                   2,858,615 <p /></td><td><p />              2,910,957 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actual company contributions<p /></td><td><p />                   3,044,529 <p /></td><td><p />              5,237,490 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actuarial gain / (loss)<p /></td><td><p />                    (108,358)<p /></td><td><p />                   75,311 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Benefits paid<p /></td><td><p />                   6,535,008 <p /></td><td><p />              4,452,188 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Plan assets at the end of the year<p /></td><td><p />               42,993,671 <p /></td><td><p />          43,733,893 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actual return on plan assets<p /></td><td><p />                            2,966,973 <p /></td><td><p />                      2,835,646 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Composition of the plan assets is as follows:<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Government bonds<p /></td><td><p />                 42,993,671 <p /></td><td><p />             43,733,893 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actuarial assumptions<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Discount rate<p /></td><td><p />6.55%<p /></td><td><p />6.55%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Expected return on plan assets<p /></td><td><p />6.55%<p /></td><td><p />6.55%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Salary esclation<p /></td><td><p />8.80%<p /></td><td><p />8.80%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Attrition<p /></td><td><p />7%-15%<p /></td><td><p />7%-15%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
 <p></p><p> </p><p> </p><table><tbody><tr><td><p>R) Segments</p></td></tr><tr><td><p />The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conirmity with the accounting policies adopted for the  <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />company. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilites are indentified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the  <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />operating activities of the segments. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relates to the company as a whole<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />and are not allocable to segments on a resonable basis, are included under "unallocated". <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p /><table><tbody><tr><td><p />Notes forming part of the financial statements<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />Note 33 Segment Reporting<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(A) Business Segments<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p />Business segments<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />Unallocated<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />Total<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />2020-21<p /></td><td><p />2019-20<p /></td><td><p />2020-21<p /></td><td><p />2019-20<p /></td><td><p />2020-21<p /></td><td><p />2019-20<p /></td><td><p />2020-21<p /></td><td><p />2019-20<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Equity Broking<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />Merchant Banking<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />`<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />`<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />`<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />`<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />Segment Revenue<p /></td><td><p />          867,088,058 <p /></td><td><p />          768,973,966 <p /></td><td><p />       45,150,975 <p /></td><td><p />          15,256,207 <p /></td><td><p />        33,785,969 <p /></td><td><p />            9,212,871 <p /></td><td><p />     946,025,002 <p /></td><td><p />          793,443,044 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Total<p /></td><td><p />        867,088,058 <p /></td><td><p />        768,973,966 <p /></td><td><p />    45,150,975 <p /></td><td><p />       15,256,207 <p /></td><td><p />     33,785,969 <p /></td><td><p />         9,212,871 <p /></td><td><p />   946,025,002 <p /></td><td><p />        793,443,044 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Segment Expenses<p /></td><td><p />          681,623,812 <p /></td><td><p />          711,345,217 <p /></td><td><p />       27,255,441 <p /></td><td><p />          17,597,618 <p /></td><td><p />        18,566,175 <p /></td><td><p />          31,091,069 <p /></td><td><p />     727,445,428 <p /></td><td><p />          760,033,904 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Segment results<p /></td><td><p />        185,464,246 <p /></td><td><p />          57,628,748 <p /></td><td><p />17,895,534 <p /></td><td><p />        (2,341,411)<p /></td><td><p />15,219,794 <p /></td><td><p />      (21,878,198)<p /></td><td><p />   218,579,574 <p /></td><td><p />          33,409,141 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(Operating Profit before Interest & Tax)<p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Interest & Finance charges<p /></td><td><p />         6,250,833 <p /></td><td><p />            10,183,713 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Profit Before Tax <p /></td><td><p />   212,328,741 <p /></td><td><p />          23,225,428 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Tax Expense <p /></td><td><p />       61,533,719 <p /></td><td><p />            15,034,662 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net profit for the year<p /></td><td><p />   150,795,023 <p /></td><td><p />            8,190,765 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(B) Other Information<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Segment assets<p /></td><td><p />          854,073,722 <p /></td><td><p />          737,999,283 <p /></td><td><p />         3,678,537 <p /></td><td><p />            4,554,489 <p /></td><td><p />      347,442,529 <p /></td><td><p />        232,853,752 <p /></td><td><p />   1,205,194,789 <p /></td><td><p />          975,407,523 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Segment liabilities<p /></td><td><p />          118,004,343 <p /></td><td><p />          100,545,819 <p /></td><td><p />                   -   <p /></td><td><p />                      -   <p /></td><td><p />      222,579,614 <p /></td><td><p />        161,045,896 <p /></td><td><p />     340,583,957 <p /></td><td><p />          261,591,714 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Capital expenditure (allocable)<p /></td><td><p />              8,015,764 <p /></td><td><p />            17,487,555 <p /></td><td><p />           214,325 <p /></td><td><p />              460,199 <p /></td><td><p />         1,283,293 <p /></td><td><p />            2,785,264 <p /></td><td><p />         9,513,383 <p /></td><td><p />            20,733,017 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Depreciation<p /></td><td><p />              9,234,486 <p /></td><td><p />              8,698,208 <p /></td><td><p />           246,911 <p /></td><td><p />              228,900 <p /></td><td><p />         1,007,558 <p /></td><td><p />            1,098,076 <p /></td><td><p />       10,488,955 <p /></td><td><p />            10,025,184 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />1.The Company has identified "Equity broking and Merchant banking division" as the only primary reportable business segments .<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />2. Segment have been indentified in line with the Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (As-17), taking into account the organisation structure as well as differential risk and returns of these segments.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />3. Since the Company provides services in the same economic enviornement, hence no geographical segments.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p />  <p />
 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>o) Leases</p></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Finance Leases, which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risk and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value or present value of the minimum Lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii)Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged directly against income. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />iii) Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct cost are capitalized.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />iv) If there is no reasonable certainty that the company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assets or the lease term.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />v) Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases.  Operating Lease payments are recognised as expenses in the Profit & Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.<p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
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 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>e)      Impairment of Assets</p></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company, at each balance sheet date, assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of any assets and/or cash generating unit. If such indication exists, assets are impaired by comparing carrying amount of each assets and/or cash generating units to the recoverable amount being higher of the net selling price or value in use. Value in use are determined from the present value of the estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of the assets. <p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
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 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>l)   Taxes on Income </p></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Current Tax: - Provision for Current Tax is computed as per the provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and any excess or shortfall in the provisioon of the taxation of earlier years is adjusted with the Reserve & Surplus.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) Deferred Tax:- Deferred tax is recognized in accordance with Accounting standard 22 on “Accounting for Taxes on income” issued by, The Institute of chartered Accountants of India. Tax expenses comprise of both current and deferred tax. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities using the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax asset and liabilities are recognised for future tax consequences attributable to timing differences between taxable income and accounting income that are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and are measured using relevant enacted tax rates.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(iii) MAT Credit Entitlement :-Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.<p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
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 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>i)    Revenue Recognition</p></td></tr><tr><td><p />All revenues including interest are recognised on accrual basis except Dividend income, which is recognized on cash basis.<p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>m) Earning Per Share<p /><p>The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting Standard-20 Earnings per share prescribed by the</p><p>Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average</p><p>number of equity shares outstanding during the year.</p><p>Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or</p><p>converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by weighted average number of equity</p><p>shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.</p><p /><p />Note 23 Earning Per Share</p></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />For the year ended <br></br>31 March, 2021<p /></td><td><p /> For the year ended <br></br>31 March, 2020 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Earnings per share<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Basic & Diluted<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net profit / (loss) for the year from continuing operations<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />                 150,795,023 <p /></td><td><p />                    8,190,765 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net profit / (loss) for the year<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />              150,795,023 <p /></td><td><p />                  8,190,765 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Weighted average number of equity shares<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />                   26,107,941 <p /></td><td><p />                  26,107,941 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Par value per share<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p />                          10.00 <p /></td><td><p />                          10.00 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Earnings per share<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />                           5.78 <p /></td><td><p />                           0.31 <p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
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 <p>DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY</p><p>INITIATIVES</p><p>As per the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to incur expenditure towards CSR activities</p><p>to the extent of Rs. 14,67,606/- (Rupees Fourteen Lakhs Sixtyseven Thousand Six Hundred Six only) for the financial year 2019-20.However,</p><p>during the financial year 2020-21, company has paid to AkshayaPatra Foundations Rs- 21,88,000 for the Education and providing mid-day meal</p><p>to underprivileged children, ensuring a healthy balance meal and prevent drop out in School and also forEnvironmental Project and other purposes</p><p>as suggested in schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013, and it’s treated as part of CSR activities, under Education purpose, as given in Schedule</p><p>VII of the Companies Act, 2013.  </p>
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 DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES
<p />


<p>As per the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to incur expenditure towards CSR activities to the extent of Rs. 14,67,606/- (Rupees Fourteen Lakhs Sixtyseven Thousand Six Hundred Six only) for the financial year 2019-20.However, during the financial year 2020-21, company has paid toAkshayaPatra FoundationsRs- 21,88,000 for the Education and providing mid-day meal to underprivileged children, ensuring a healthy balance meal and prevent drop out in School and also forEnvironmental Project and other purposes as suggested in schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013, and it’s treated as part of CSR activities, under Education purpose, as given in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.</p><p />
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<p>Mumbai- 400 020</p><p />BANKERS: Axis Bank Limited </p><p>HDFC Bank Limited <p /><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>NOTICE</p><p />NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE TWENTY THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY WILL BE HELDON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2021, AT 3.00 P.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT CSE BUILDING, 3 / 4, 7 - LYONS RANGE, KOLKATA -700 001, WEST BENGAL, TO TRANSACT FOLLOWING BUSINESS: <p /><p>ORDINARY BUSINESS</p>

<p />
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet ofthe Company as at March 31, 2021, and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date together with Reports of Auditors and Directors thereon. 
<p /><p /><p />
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
<p /><p />


<p>“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with Rule 3(7) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, M/s. Agarwal Sanganeria & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 317224E),have been appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2017-18 to 2021-22 (5 years) in the Nineteenth (19th )Annual General Meeting of the Company, to hold office till the conclusion of the AGM to be held in the Calendar year 2021-22(Subject to ratification by members at every AGM). Accordingly, M/s. Agarwal Sanganeria & Co., Statutory Auditor of the Company holds office until the conclusion of the ensuring Annual General Meeting. However, the requirement of ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors by Members at every Annual General Meeting is omitted by amendment of Companies Act, 2013; hence the ratification of appointment is not applicable.”</p><p /><p>SPECIAL BUSINESS</p><p>ITEM NO. 1:</p><p /><p>FOR APPROVAL OF THE LIMITS FOR THE CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTE FOR DONATION / CSR ACTIVITIES IN TERMS OF THE PROVISIONS SECTION 181 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.</p><p />To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as SPECIAL RESOLUTION.<p /><p>“Resolved That pursuant to the provision of Section 181 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to contribute and / or donate, from time to time, to any bona fide charitable and other funds, (it may be a part of CSR activities as asked by section 135 Companies Act 2013) amounts not exceeding in aggregate to all such funds taken together up to a sum of Rs- 1.50 Crore (Rupees One Crore and Fifty lacs only) during the financial year of the company.</p><p /><p>ITEM NO. 2:</p>

<p>TO MAKE INVESTMENT, GIVE LOANS, GUARANTEES AND PROVIDE SECURITIES UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.</p><p>To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as SPECIAL RESOLUTION.</p><p />"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with TheCompanies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), if any, the approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board to (a) give any loan to any Body corporate(s) / person (s); (b) give any guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any Body corporate(s) / person (s); and (c) acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, securities of any Body corporate from time to time in one or more trenches as the Board of Directors as in their absolute discretion deem beneficial and in the interest of the Company, for an amount not exceeding INR 80,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Eighty Crore Only) outstanding at any time notwithstanding that such investments, outstanding loans given or to be given and guarantees and security provided are in excess of the limits prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.</p><p />RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of Investment and divestment of the investment, any Directors of the Company be and arehereby authorized to sign the necessary applications, papers, forms, documents etc. for effective implementation of decision of divestment taken by the Company from time to time.<p><p />“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, Board of Directors of the Companyand/or any person authorized by the Board from time to time be and is hereby empowered and authorised to take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining approvals, statutory or otherwise, in relation to the above and to settle all matters arising out of and incidental thereto and to sign and to execute deeds, applications, documents and writings that may be required, on behalf of the Company and generally to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for giving effect to this resolution.”</p><p>For and on behalf of the Board of Directors</p><p />





<p>Omprakash Tripathy</p>

<p>Company Secretary</p><p>M.No. A29521.</p><p>Place: Mumbai</p><p>Date: October 11, 2021</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p>NOTE:</p>

<p />
A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on poll on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company.
<p /><p /><p />
Pursuant to Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a Proxy on behalf of not more than fifty members holding in aggregate, not more than ten percent of the total share Capital of Company may appoint a single person as Proxy, who shall not act as a Proxy for any other Member. 
<p /><p /><p />
The instrument of Proxy, in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not later than 48 hours (Sunday is included in computation of 48 hours) before the commencement of the Meeting. A Proxy Form is annexed to this report. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.
<p /><p /><p />
An Explanatory Statement relating to the special business mentioned in the Notice as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed to the notice.
<p /><p /><p />
Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the Accounts and operations of the Company are requested to send their queries to the Company (Company Secretary) at least seven days before the date of the Meeting, so that the information required by them may be made available at the AGM. 
<p /><p />
Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules made there under, companies can serve Annual Reports, Notice of AGM and other communications through electronic mode to those Members who have registered their email address by the Company or directly deliver (In physical form) by Company to Members upon request. Members of the Company who have registered their email address are also entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon request.
<p /><p /><p />
The complete particulars of the venue of the meeting including route map and prominent land mark for easy location are giving under:
<p /><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p>


<p />Venue of the meeting: CSE Building, 3 / 4, (3rd Floor) 7 –Lyons Range, Kolkata-700001, West Bengal, <p /><p>Google Map- Indicate the venue of AGM</p><p /> <p /><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>EXPLANATORY STATEMENT </p>


<p>(Pursuant to the Provision of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013.)</p><p>Dear Members,</p><p />


<p>Following is the elaborate Explanatory Statement for your perusal;</p><p /><p>ITEM NO. 1;</p><p /><p>As per Section 181 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company can contribute to bona fide charitable and other funds, any amount the aggregate of which in any financial year shall not exceed 5% of its average net profits, as determined in accordance with the provisions of section 198 of Companies Act, 2013, for the three immediately preceding financial years.</p><p>As a part of Charitable contribution (for Charity work) and Corporate Social Responsibility, donation / contribution up to Rs-1.50 Crore (One Crore and Fifty Lacs rupees only) may be given to Indian or foreign institutes or organisations for undertaking scientific research, welfare and social activities and any other object of general public utility including the activities of Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013.</p><p>As required under section 181 of the Companies Act 2013 donation of above amount which is higher than the limit prescribed in the Section, requires the sanction/approval of Shareholders in general meeting.</p><p>The Directors recommends the resolution for members’ approval as aSpecial Resolution.</p><p>None of the Directors, Key managerial personal or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in this resolution.</p><p>ITEM NO. 2; </p><p>In order to make optimum use of funds available with the Company and also to achieve long term strategic and business objectives, the Board of Directors of the Company proposes to make use of the same by making investment in other bodies corporate or granting loans, giving guarantee or providing security to other persons or other body corporate or as and when required.</p><p>Pursuant to the provisions of section 186 or 186(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Company needs to obtain prior approval of shareholders / members by way of special resolution passed at the General Meeting in case the amount of investment, loan, guarantee or security proposed to be made is more than the higher of sixty percent of the paid up share capital, free reserves and securities premium account or one hundred percent of free reserves and securities premium account.</p><p>Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company proposes to obtain approval of shareholders by way of special resolution as contained in the notice of the Annual General Meeting for an amount not exceeding INR 80,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Eighty Crore Only) outstanding at any time notwithstanding that such investments, outstanding loans given or to be given and guarantees and security provided are in excess of the limits prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.</p><p>The Directors therefore, recommend the Special Resolution for approval of the shareholders.</p>

<p>None of the Directors, Key managerial personal or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in this resolution.</p><p>For and on behalf of the Board of Directors</p><p />





<p>Omprakash Tripathy</p>

<p>Company Secretary</p><p>M.No. A29521.</p><p>Place: Mumbai</p><p>Date: October 11, 2021</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>DIRECTOR’S REPORT</p><p>To The Members,</p><p /><p>Batlivala&Karani Securities India Pvt. Ltd.,</p><p /><p>Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their 23rd Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021.</p><p />

<p />
FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY.
<p /><p>The Board report has prepared based on the Standalone&Consolidated financial statements of the Company.</p><p /><table><tbody><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p />Amount in Rs.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Particulars</p><p>As at the end of current reporting period</p><p>As at the end of previous reporting period</p><p>As at the end of current reporting period</p><p>As at the end of previous reporting period</p><p /><p>Standalone</p><p>Consolidated (CFS)</p><p>Total Revenue</p><p>94,60,25,002</p><p>79,34,43,044</p><p>95,20,06,567</p><p>80,25,17,665</p><p>Total Expenses</p><p>73,36,96,261</p><p>77,02,17,617</p><p>73,91,96,308</p><p>77,83,88,186</p><p>Profit or Loss before Exceptional and Extraordinary items and Tax</p><p>21,23,28,741</p><p>2,32,25,428</p><p>21,28,10,259</p><p>2,41,29,478</p><p>Less: Exceptional Items</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Less: Extraordinary Items</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Profit or Loss before Tax</p><p>21,23,28,741</p><p>2,32,25,428</p><p>21,28,10,259</p><p>2,41,29,478</p><p>Less/(add): Tax Liability for earlier years</p><p>-</p><p>-</p><p>-</p><p>2,98,329</p><p>Less: Current Tax</p><p>6,08,52,057</p><p>1,10,35,529</p><p>6,10,18,674</p><p>1,10,35,529</p><p>Deferred Tax</p><p>6,81,662</p><p>39,99,133</p><p>6,81,662</p><p>39,99,133</p><p>Profit or Loss after Tax</p><p>15,07,95,023</p><p>81,90,765</p><p>15,11,09,923</p><p>87,96,487</p><p>Less: Adjustment for Subsidiary & Associate Co.</p><p>NA</p><p>NA</p><p>(2,86,274)</p><p>(4,42,979)</p><p>Profit or Loss after adj. for Sub. & Associate Co.</p><p>NA</p><p>NA</p><p>15,08,23,650</p><p>83,53,508</p><p>Add: Balance as per last Balance Sheet</p><p>32,91,15,827</p><p>33,15,55,082</p><p>28,76,95,721</p><p>29,16,97,241</p><p>Less: other adjustments</p><p>-</p><p>1,06,30,020</p><p>19,22,835</p><p>1,23,55,030</p><p>Balance Transferred to Balance Sheet</p><p>47,99,10,850</p><p>32,91,15,827</p><p>43,65,96,536</p><p>28,76,95,721</p><p /><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr></tbody></table><p> </p><p />
DIVIDEND
<p /><p>No Dividend was declared for the current financial year.</p><p /><p />
TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION FUND
<p /><p>The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend declared and paid last year.</p><p /><p />
REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS:
<p /><p>Your Directors are optimistic about company’s business and hopeful of better performance with increased revenue in next year. There was no change in the nature of business of company.</p><p /><p />
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT
<p /><p /><p></p><p>The ongoing global COVID-19 pandemic has caused and continues to cause significant loss of life and has resulted in curtailment of economic activities across the world as local administrations and governments seek to limit spread of the disease, including through lockdown policies, restriction on business activities and business shutdowns. The economic impact of the pandemic in India has been largely devastating and is also impacted the business of the Company. However, the Company has taken all necessary measures in terms of mitigating the impact of the challenges being faced in the business. The Company adopted a provisional work from home policy for major part of employees during COVID-19 peak periods. The physical and emotional wellbeing of employees continues to be a top priority for the Company, with several initiatives to support employees and their families during the pandemic. The Company adhered to all the government advisories and guidelines thoroughly and in good faith.</p><p /><p>With the exception of above, there have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the ends of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and date of this report</p><p /><p />
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.
<p /><p />


<p />
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption
<p /><p /><p>The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year under review.</p><p /><p />
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
<p /><p><table><tbody><tr><td>


<p>Earnings</p></td><td>


<p>Rs:- 3,35,50,243</p></td></tr><tr><td>


<p>Outgo</p></td><td>


<p>Rs:- 2,89,56,222</p></td></tr></tbody></table></p><p />

<p />
STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY
<p /><p /><p>The Company has laid down a comprehensive Risk Assessment and Minimization Procedure which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. These procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk through means of a properly defined framework. The major risks have been identified by the Company and its mitigation process/measures have been formulated in the areas such as business, project execution, event, financial, human, environment and statutory compliance.</p><p />
DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES
<p /><p /><p>As per the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to incur expenditure towards CSR activities to the extent of Rs. 14,67,606/- (Rupees Fourteen Lakhs Sixtyseven Thousand Six Hundred Six only) for the financial year 2019-20.However, during the financial year 2020-21, company has paid toAkshayaPatra FoundationsRs- 21,88,000 for the Education and providing mid-day meal to underprivileged children, ensuring a healthy balance meal and prevent drop out in School and also forEnvironmental Project and other purposes as suggested in schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013, and it’s treated as part of CSR activities, under Education purpose, as given in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.</p><p /><p />
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
<p /><p /><p>Company has complied with the provision of section 186 of Companies act 2013 in relation to Loan, Investment & Guarantee given by the company during the financial year under review.</p><p />
ANNUAL RETURN
<p /><p /><p>The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in (Annexure I) and is attached to this Report.</p><p /><p />
EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS
<p /><p /><p>There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report. The provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report is not applicable to the Company.</p><p /><p />
COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES
<p /><p /><p>The Company does not fall under the prescribed class of companies under section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the Company is not required to constitute a Nomination and Remuneration Committee and furnish details in this regard.</p><p /><p />
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES
<p /><p /><p />There were no contract or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review. (Annexure II)<p /><p /><p />
NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW
<p /><p /><p />The Company has conductedTen (10) Board meetings during the financial year under review. For further details refer the (Annexure III).<p /><p /><p />
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
<p /><p />


<p>In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby submits its responsibility Statement:</p><p />


<p />
in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;
<p /><p /><p />
The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;
<p /><p /><p />
The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
<p /><p /><p />
The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
<p /><p /><p />
The Company being unlisted, sub clause (e) of section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to laying down internal financial controls is not applicable to the Company; and
<p /><p /><p />
The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
<p /><p />

<p />
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
<p /><p> </p><p />Pursuant to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Act, the statement containing the salient feature of the financial statement of a company’s subsidiary or subsidiaries and associate company is given as (Annexure-----IV) [Performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries and associates companies included in the consolidated financial statement]<p /><p>Further, the Annual Accounts and related documents of the subsidiary company shall be kept open for inspection at the Registered & Corporate Office of the Company. The Company will also make available copy thereof upon specific request by any Member of the Company interested in obtaining the same. Further, pursuant to Accounting Standard AS-21 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and section 129 of the companies Act 2013, Consolidated Financial Statements presented by the Company in this Annual Report include the financial information of its subsidiary.</p><p /><p />
DEPOSITS
<p /><p /><p>The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.</p><p /><p />
DIRECTORS
<p /><p /><p />Mr. Abhijit Talekar has resigned from the Board of the Director of the Company with effect from 28th September, 2021.The Board places our records its appreciation for the valuable contribution made to the Company during the tenure as a Director,during the year under review. In view of the applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not mandatorily required to appoint any whole time KMPs.<p /><p />
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
<p /><p /><p>The provisions of Section 149 for appointment of Independent Directors do not apply to the company.</p><p /><p />
ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
<p /><p /><p>The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the operation were observed.</p><p /><p />
STATUTORY AUDITORS
<p /><p /><p>In the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 29, 2017, M/s. Agarwal Sanganeria & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 317224E), have been re-appointed Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of Five (5) years to hold office till the conclusion of the AGM to be held in the Calendar year 2022 (subject to ratification by the members at every AGM). Accordingly,M/s Agarwal Sanganeria & Co., Statutory Auditor of the Company holds office until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. However, the requirement of ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors by Members at every Annual General Meeting is omitted by amendment of Companies Act, 2013; hence the ratification of appointment is not applicable. </p><p /><p />
DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM
<p /><p /><p>The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.</p><p /><p />
SHARES
<p /><p /><p>During the year under review, the company has undertaken following transactions:</p><p><table><tbody><tr><td>


<p>Increase in Share Capital</p></td><td>


<p>Buy Back of Securities</p></td><td>


<p>Sweat Equity</p></td><td>


<p>Bonus Shares</p></td><td>


<p>Employees Stock Option Plan</p></td></tr><tr><td>


<p>Nil</p></td><td>


<p>Nil</p></td><td>


<p>Nil</p></td><td>


<p>Nil</p></td><td>


<p>Nil</p></td></tr></tbody></table></p><p /><p> </p><p />
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND TRIBUNALS
<p /><p /><p>No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.</p><p /><p />
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
<p /><p /><p>The company has in place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment in accordance with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The Company did not receive any complaint during the year 2020-21.</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p />
STATUTORY DISCLOSURES
<p /><p /><p>In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and rule 5(2) & rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rule, 2014, particulars of the employees are set out in the Annexure V to the Directors’ Report. However, as per the provisions of Section 136 of the said Act, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to all the members of the Company and others entitled thereto. Any member interested in obtaining such particulars may write to the Company Secretary of the Company or may approach at the registered office of the Company.</p><p /><p> </p><p />
AWARDS
<p /><p /><p>Company has not received any award during the financial year under review.</p><p /><p />
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
<p /><p />
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<p>(DIN -06717827) (DIN -05180177)</p><p /><p>  </p>
 true
 false
 Fixed Assets



(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. 
(b) The management at reasonable intervals has physically verified the Fixed Assets and as such there was no material discrepancies noticed at the time of verification.
(c) No immoveable properties are held in the name of the company as on 31st March 2021.
 Inventories



The company is not carrying on any trading or manufacturing activity. Accordingly, clause 3(ii) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2017 is not applicable to the company.
 Granting of Loans to certain Parties 



The company has granted loan to one party covered in the register maintained u/s.189 of the Companies Act, 2013 of Rs.16,15,000/- having maximum outstanding of Rs.23,15,000/- during the year and outstanding of Rs.23,15,000/- as on 31st March 2021.


The loan granted is interest free and the repayment of the principal amount is generally regular.


The reasonable steps have been taken by the company for recovery of the principal amount of the loans granted.




The company has not given any loans, investments guarantees, and security.
 Granting of Loans to certain Parties 



The company has granted loan to one party covered in the register maintained u/s.189 of the Companies Act, 2013 of Rs.16,15,000/- having maximum outstanding of Rs.23,15,000/- during the year and outstanding of Rs.23,15,000/- as on 31st March 2021.


The loan granted is interest free and the repayment of the principal amount is generally regular.


The reasonable steps have been taken by the company for recovery of the principal amount of the loans granted.




The company has not given any loans, investments guarantees, and security.
 The company has not given any loans, investments guarantees, and security.
 Acceptance of Deposits


In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits in contravention of Directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under, where applicable. No order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal.
 Maintenance of Cost Records



Maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for any product of the company.
 Deposit of Statutory Dues
<p />


<p />
As per the records verified by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing statutory dues involving Income Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Sales Tax, Service tax, Cess and other applicable statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. Also, scrutiny of the records revealed no dues in respect of Investor Education and Protection Fund, and Wealth Tax. There were no undisputed statutory dues remaining outstanding as on 31st March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable. 
<p /><p /><p />
According to the information and explanation given to us by the company, there are no cases of non-deposit of disputed dues of Sales Tax, Income Tax, Custom Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty and Cess with appropriate authorities. 
<p /><p /><p />
According to the information and explanations given to us no amount was required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules there under.
<p /><p>  </p>
 Based on the records maintained, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayments of the dues to the Banks or financial institutions. The Company has not issued any debentures nor borrowed from any Government.
 The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instrument). The Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
 During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to information and explanations given to us no material fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.
 Since the company is a private limited company thus the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.
 The company is not a Nidhi Company hence this clause is not applicable.
 Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given to us, All transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.
 The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of share or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.
 According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with the directors or person connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.
 The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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<p>Mumbai- 400 020</p><p />BANKERS: Axis Bank Limited </p><p>HDFC Bank Limited <p /><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>NOTICE</p><p>NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE TWENTY THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY WILL BE HELDON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2021, AT 3.00 P.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT CSE BUILDING, 3 / 4, 7 - LYONS RANGE, KOLKATA -700 001, WEST BENGAL, TO TRANSACT FOLLOWING BUSINESS: </p><p>ORDINARY BUSINESS</p>

<p />
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet ofthe Company as at March 31, 2021, and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date together with Reports of Auditors and Directors thereon. 
<p /><p /><p />
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
<p /><p />


<p>“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with Rule 3(7) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, M/s. Agarwal Sanganeria & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 317224E),have been appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2017-18 to 2021-22 (5 years) in the Nineteenth (19th )Annual General Meeting of the Company, to hold office till the conclusion of the AGM to be held in the Calendar year 2021-22(Subject to ratification by members at every AGM). Accordingly, M/s. Agarwal Sanganeria & Co., Statutory Auditor of the Company holds office until the conclusion of the ensuring Annual General Meeting. However, the requirement of ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors by Members at every Annual General Meeting is omitted by amendment of Companies Act, 2013; hence the ratification of appointment is not applicable.”</p><p /><p>SPECIAL BUSINESS</p><p>ITEM NO. 1:</p><p /><p>FOR APPROVAL OF THE LIMITS FOR THE CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTE FOR DONATION / CSR ACTIVITIES IN TERMS OF THE PROVISIONS SECTION 181 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.</p><p />To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as SPECIAL RESOLUTION.<p /><p>“Resolved That pursuant to the provision of Section 181 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to contribute and / or donate, from time to time, to any bona fide charitable and other funds, (it may be a part of CSR activities as asked by section 135 Companies Act 2013) amounts not exceeding in aggregate to all such funds taken together up to a sum of Rs- 1.50 Crore (Rupees One Crore and Fifty lacs only) during the financial year of the company.</p><p /><p>ITEM NO. 2:</p>

<p>TO MAKE INVESTMENT, GIVE LOANS, GUARANTEES AND PROVIDE SECURITIES UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.</p><p>To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as SPECIAL RESOLUTION.</p><p />"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with TheCompanies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), if any, the approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board to (a) give any loan to any Body corporate(s) / person (s); (b) give any guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any Body corporate(s) / person (s); and (c) acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, securities of any Body corporate from time to time in one or more trenches as the Board of Directors as in their absolute discretion deem beneficial and in the interest of the Company, for an amount not exceeding INR 80,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Eighty Crore Only) outstanding at any time notwithstanding that such investments, outstanding loans given or to be given and guarantees and security provided are in excess of the limits prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.</p><p />RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of Investment and divestment of the investment, any Directors of the Company be and arehereby authorized to sign the necessary applications, papers, forms, documents etc. for effective implementation of decision of divestment taken by the Company from time to time.<p><p />“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, Board of Directors of the Companyand/or any person authorized by the Board from time to time be and is hereby empowered and authorised to take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining approvals, statutory or otherwise, in relation to the above and to settle all matters arising out of and incidental thereto and to sign and to execute deeds, applications, documents and writings that may be required, on behalf of the Company and generally to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for giving effect to this resolution.”</p><p>For and on behalf of the Board of Directors</p><p />





<p>Omprakash Tripathy</p>

<p>Company Secretary</p><p>M.No. A29521.</p><p>Place: Mumbai</p><p>Date: October 11, 2021</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p>NOTE:</p>

<p />
A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on poll on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company.
<p /><p /><p />
Pursuant to Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a Proxy on behalf of not more than fifty members holding in aggregate, not more than ten percent of the total share Capital of Company may appoint a single person as Proxy, who shall not act as a Proxy for any other Member. 
<p /><p /><p />
The instrument of Proxy, in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not later than 48 hours (Sunday is included in computation of 48 hours) before the commencement of the Meeting. A Proxy Form is annexed to this report. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.
<p /><p /><p />
An Explanatory Statement relating to the special business mentioned in the Notice as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed to the notice.
<p /><p /><p />
Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the Accounts and operations of the Company are requested to send their queries to the Company (Company Secretary) at least seven days before the date of the Meeting, so that the information required by them may be made available at the AGM. 
<p /><p />
Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules made there under, companies can serve Annual Reports, Notice of AGM and other communications through electronic mode to those Members who have registered their email address by the Company or directly deliver (In physical form) by Company to Members upon request. Members of the Company who have registered their email address are also entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon request.
<p /><p /><p />
The complete particulars of the venue of the meeting including route map and prominent land mark for easy location are giving under:
<p /><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p>


<p />Venue of the meeting: CSE Building, 3 / 4, (3rd Floor) 7 –Lyons Range, Kolkata-700001, West Bengal, <p /><p>Google Map- Indicate the venue of AGM</p><p /> <p /><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>EXPLANATORY STATEMENT </p>


<p>(Pursuant to the Provision of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013.)</p><p>Dear Members,</p><p />


<p>Following is the elaborate Explanatory Statement for your perusal;</p><p /><p>ITEM NO. 1;</p><p /><p>As per Section 181 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company can contribute to bona fide charitable and other funds, any amount the aggregate of which in any financial year shall not exceed 5% of its average net profits, as determined in accordance with the provisions of section 198 of Companies Act, 2013, for the three immediately preceding financial years.</p><p>As a part of Charitable contribution (for Charity work) and Corporate Social Responsibility, donation / contribution up to Rs-1.50 Crore (One Crore and Fifty Lacs rupees only) may be given to Indian or foreign institutes or organisations for undertaking scientific research, welfare and social activities and any other object of general public utility including the activities of Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013.</p><p>As required under section 181 of the Companies Act 2013 donation of above amount which is higher than the limit prescribed in the Section, requires the sanction/approval of Shareholders in general meeting.</p><p>The Directors recommends the resolution for members’ approval as aSpecial Resolution.</p><p>None of the Directors, Key managerial personal or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in this resolution.</p><p>ITEM NO. 2; </p><p>In order to make optimum use of funds available with the Company and also to achieve long term strategic and business objectives, the Board of Directors of the Company proposes to make use of the same by making investment in other bodies corporate or granting loans, giving guarantee or providing security to other persons or other body corporate or as and when required.</p><p>Pursuant to the provisions of section 186 or 186(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Company needs to obtain prior approval of shareholders / members by way of special resolution passed at the General Meeting in case the amount of investment, loan, guarantee or security proposed to be made is more than the higher of sixty percent of the paid up share capital, free reserves and securities premium account or one hundred percent of free reserves and securities premium account.</p><p>Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company proposes to obtain approval of shareholders by way of special resolution as contained in the notice of the Annual General Meeting for an amount not exceeding INR 80,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Eighty Crore Only) outstanding at any time notwithstanding that such investments, outstanding loans given or to be given and guarantees and security provided are in excess of the limits prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.</p><p>The Directors therefore, recommend the Special Resolution for approval of the shareholders.</p>

<p>None of the Directors, Key managerial personal or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in this resolution.</p><p>For and on behalf of the Board of Directors</p><p />





<p>Omprakash Tripathy</p>

<p>Company Secretary</p><p>M.No. A29521.</p><p>Place: Mumbai</p><p>Date: October 11, 2021</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>DIRECTOR’S REPORT</p><p>To The Members,</p><p /><p>Batlivala&Karani Securities India Pvt. Ltd.,</p><p /><p>Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their 23rd Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021.</p><p />

<p />
FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY.
<p /><p>The Board report has prepared based on the Standalone&Consolidated financial statements of the Company.</p><p /><table><tbody><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p />Amount in Rs.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Particulars</p><p>As at the end of current reporting period</p><p>As at the end of previous reporting period</p><p>As at the end of current reporting period</p><p>As at the end of previous reporting period</p><p /><p>Standalone</p><p>Consolidated (CFS)</p><p>Total Revenue</p><p>94,60,25,002</p><p>79,34,43,044</p><p>95,20,06,567</p><p>80,25,17,665</p><p>Total Expenses</p><p>73,36,96,261</p><p>77,02,17,617</p><p>73,91,96,308</p><p>77,83,88,186</p><p>Profit or Loss before Exceptional and Extraordinary items and Tax</p><p>21,23,28,741</p><p>2,32,25,428</p><p>21,28,10,259</p><p>2,41,29,478</p><p>Less: Exceptional Items</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Less: Extraordinary Items</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Profit or Loss before Tax</p><p>21,23,28,741</p><p>2,32,25,428</p><p>21,28,10,259</p><p>2,41,29,478</p><p>Less/(add): Tax Liability for earlier years</p><p>-</p><p>-</p><p>-</p><p>2,98,329</p><p>Less: Current Tax</p><p>6,08,52,057</p><p>1,10,35,529</p><p>6,10,18,674</p><p>1,10,35,529</p><p>Deferred Tax</p><p>6,81,662</p><p>39,99,133</p><p>6,81,662</p><p>39,99,133</p><p>Profit or Loss after Tax</p><p>15,07,95,023</p><p>81,90,765</p><p>15,11,09,923</p><p>87,96,487</p><p>Less: Adjustment for Subsidiary & Associate Co.</p><p>NA</p><p>NA</p><p>(2,86,274)</p><p>(4,42,979)</p><p>Profit or Loss after adj. for Sub. & Associate Co.</p><p>NA</p><p>NA</p><p>15,08,23,650</p><p>83,53,508</p><p>Add: Balance as per last Balance Sheet</p><p>32,91,15,827</p><p>33,15,55,082</p><p>28,76,95,721</p><p>29,16,97,241</p><p>Less: other adjustments</p><p>-</p><p>1,06,30,020</p><p>19,22,835</p><p>1,23,55,030</p><p>Balance Transferred to Balance Sheet</p><p>47,99,10,850</p><p>32,91,15,827</p><p>43,65,96,536</p><p>28,76,95,721</p><p /><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr></tbody></table><p> </p><p />
DIVIDEND
<p /><p>No Dividend was declared for the current financial year.</p><p /><p />
TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION FUND
<p /><p>The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend declared and paid last year.</p><p /><p />
REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS:
<p /><p>Your Directors are optimistic about company’s business and hopeful of better performance with increased revenue in next year. There was no change in the nature of business of company.</p><p /><p />
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT
<p /><p /><p></p><p>The ongoing global COVID-19 pandemic has caused and continues to cause significant loss of life and has resulted in curtailment of economic activities across the world as local administrations and governments seek to limit spread of the disease, including through lockdown policies, restriction on business activities and business shutdowns. The economic impact of the pandemic in India has been largely devastating and is also impacted the business of the Company. However, the Company has taken all necessary measures in terms of mitigating the impact of the challenges being faced in the business. The Company adopted a provisional work from home policy for major part of employees during COVID-19 peak periods. The physical and emotional wellbeing of employees continues to be a top priority for the Company, with several initiatives to support employees and their families during the pandemic. The Company adhered to all the government advisories and guidelines thoroughly and in good faith.</p><p /><p>With the exception of above, there have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the ends of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and date of this report</p><p /><p />
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.
<p /><p />


<p />
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption
<p /><p /><p>The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year under review.</p><p /><p />
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
<p /><p><table><tbody><tr><td>


<p>Earnings</p></td><td>


<p>Rs:- 3,35,50,243</p></td></tr><tr><td>


<p>Outgo</p></td><td>


<p>Rs:- 2,89,56,222</p></td></tr></tbody></table></p><p />

<p />
STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY
<p /><p /><p>The Company has laid down a comprehensive Risk Assessment and Minimization Procedure which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. These procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk through means of a properly defined framework. The major risks have been identified by the Company and its mitigation process/measures have been formulated in the areas such as business, project execution, event, financial, human, environment and statutory compliance.</p><p />
DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES
<p /><p /><p>As per the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to incur expenditure towards CSR activities to the extent of Rs. 14,67,606/- (Rupees Fourteen Lakhs Sixtyseven Thousand Six Hundred Six only) for the financial year 2019-20.However, during the financial year 2020-21, company has paid toAkshayaPatra FoundationsRs- 21,88,000 for the Education and providing mid-day meal to underprivileged children, ensuring a healthy balance meal and prevent drop out in School and also forEnvironmental Project and other purposes as suggested in schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013, and it’s treated as part of CSR activities, under Education purpose, as given in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.</p><p /><p />
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
<p /><p /><p>Company has complied with the provision of section 186 of Companies act 2013 in relation to Loan, Investment & Guarantee given by the company during the financial year under review.</p><p />
ANNUAL RETURN
<p /><p /><p>The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in (Annexure I) and is attached to this Report.</p><p /><p />
EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS
<p /><p /><p>There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report. The provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report is not applicable to the Company.</p><p /><p />
COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES
<p /><p /><p>The Company does not fall under the prescribed class of companies under section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the Company is not required to constitute a Nomination and Remuneration Committee and furnish details in this regard.</p><p /><p />
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES
<p /><p /><p />There were no contract or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review. (Annexure II)<p /><p /><p />
NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW
<p /><p /><p />The Company has conductedTen (10) Board meetings during the financial year under review. For further details refer the (Annexure III).<p /><p /><p />
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
<p /><p />


<p>In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby submits its responsibility Statement:</p><p />


<p />
in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;
<p /><p /><p />
The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;
<p /><p /><p />
The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
<p /><p /><p />
The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
<p /><p /><p />
The Company being unlisted, sub clause (e) of section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to laying down internal financial controls is not applicable to the Company; and
<p /><p /><p />
The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
<p /><p />

<p />
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
<p /><p> </p><p />Pursuant to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Act, the statement containing the salient feature of the financial statement of a company’s subsidiary or subsidiaries and associate company is given as (Annexure-----IV) [Performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries and associates companies included in the consolidated financial statement]<p /><p>Further, the Annual Accounts and related documents of the subsidiary company shall be kept open for inspection at the Registered & Corporate Office of the Company. The Company will also make available copy thereof upon specific request by any Member of the Company interested in obtaining the same. Further, pursuant to Accounting Standard AS-21 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and section 129 of the companies Act 2013, Consolidated Financial Statements presented by the Company in this Annual Report include the financial information of its subsidiary.</p><p /><p />
DEPOSITS
<p /><p /><p>The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.</p><p /><p />
DIRECTORS
<p /><p /><p />Mr. Abhijit Talekar has resigned from the Board of the Director of the Company with effect from 28th September, 2021.The Board places our records its appreciation for the valuable contribution made to the Company during the tenure as a Director,during the year under review. In view of the applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not mandatorily required to appoint any whole time KMPs.<p /><p />
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
<p /><p /><p>The provisions of Section 149 for appointment of Independent Directors do not apply to the company.</p><p /><p />
ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
<p /><p /><p>The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the operation were observed.</p><p /><p />
STATUTORY AUDITORS
<p /><p /><p>In the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 29, 2017, M/s. Agarwal Sanganeria & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 317224E), have been re-appointed Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of Five (5) years to hold office till the conclusion of the AGM to be held in the Calendar year 2022 (subject to ratification by the members at every AGM). Accordingly,M/s Agarwal Sanganeria & Co., Statutory Auditor of the Company holds office until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. However, the requirement of ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors by Members at every Annual General Meeting is omitted by amendment of Companies Act, 2013; hence the ratification of appointment is not applicable. </p><p /><p />
DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM
<p /><p /><p>The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.</p><p /><p />
SHARES
<p /><p /><p>During the year under review, the company has undertaken following transactions:</p><p><table><tbody><tr><td>


<p>Increase in Share Capital</p></td><td>


<p>Buy Back of Securities</p></td><td>


<p>Sweat Equity</p></td><td>


<p>Bonus Shares</p></td><td>


<p>Employees Stock Option Plan</p></td></tr><tr><td>


<p>Nil</p></td><td>


<p>Nil</p></td><td>


<p>Nil</p></td><td>


<p>Nil</p></td><td>


<p>Nil</p></td></tr></tbody></table></p><p /><p> </p><p />
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND TRIBUNALS
<p /><p /><p>No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.</p><p /><p />
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
<p /><p /><p>The company has in place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment in accordance with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The Company did not receive any complaint during the year 2020-21.</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p />
STATUTORY DISCLOSURES
<p /><p /><p>In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and rule 5(2) & rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rule, 2014, particulars of the employees are set out in the Annexure V to the Directors’ Report. However, as per the provisions of Section 136 of the said Act, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to all the members of the Company and others entitled thereto. Any member interested in obtaining such particulars may write to the Company Secretary of the Company or may approach at the registered office of the Company.</p><p /><p> </p><p />
AWARDS
<p /><p /><p>Company has not received any award during the financial year under review.</p><p /><p />
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
<p /><p />


<p>Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to the bankers, valued Customers, Auditors, business associates, consultants, National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, MCX Stock Exchange Ltd and other regulatory authorities, for their continued support extended to your Companies activities during the year under review. Your Directors also acknowledges the contribution of the employee and the shareholders for their support and confidence reposed on your Company.</p><p /><table><tbody><tr><td><p /></td><td><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD</p><p />For Batlivala&Karani Securities India Private Limited <p /><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Dated: Oct. 11, 2021<p /></td><td><p />Saahil MurarkaJitendra Soni<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Place: Mumbai<p /></td><td><p />Director Director<p /></td></tr></tbody></table>








<p>(DIN -06717827) (DIN -05180177)</p><p />
 FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY.


The Board report has prepared based on the Standalone&Consolidated financial statements of the Company.









Amount in Rs.


Particulars
As at the end of current reporting period
As at the end of previous reporting period
As at the end of current reporting period
As at the end of previous reporting period

Standalone
Consolidated (CFS)
Total Revenue
94,60,25,002
79,34,43,044
95,20,06,567
80,25,17,665
Total Expenses
73,36,96,261
77,02,17,617
73,91,96,308
77,83,88,186
Profit or Loss before Exceptional and Extraordinary items and Tax
21,23,28,741
2,32,25,428
21,28,10,259
2,41,29,478
Less: Exceptional Items

 
 
 
Less: Extraordinary Items

 
 
 
Profit or Loss before Tax
21,23,28,741
2,32,25,428
21,28,10,259
2,41,29,478
Less/(add): Tax Liability for earlier years
-
-
-
2,98,329
Less: Current Tax
6,08,52,057
1,10,35,529
6,10,18,674
1,10,35,529
Deferred Tax
6,81,662
39,99,133
6,81,662
39,99,133
Profit or Loss after Tax
15,07,95,023
81,90,765
15,11,09,923
87,96,487
Less: Adjustment for Subsidiary & Associate Co.
NA
NA
(2,86,274)
(4,42,979)
Profit or Loss after adj. for Sub. & Associate Co.
NA
NA
15,08,23,650
83,53,508
Add: Balance as per last Balance Sheet
32,91,15,827
33,15,55,082
28,76,95,721
29,16,97,241
Less: other adjustments
-
1,06,30,020
19,22,835
1,23,55,030
Balance Transferred to Balance Sheet
47,99,10,850
32,91,15,827
43,65,96,536
28,76,95,721
 na
 DIVIDEND


No Dividend was declared for the current financial year.
 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.




Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption


The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year under review.


Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo








Earnings



Rs:- 3,35,50,243




Outgo



Rs:- 2,89,56,222
 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.




Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption


The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year under review.


Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo








Earnings



Rs:- 3,35,50,243




Outgo



Rs:- 2,89,56,222
 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.




Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption


The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year under review.


Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo








Earnings



Rs:- 3,35,50,243




Outgo



Rs:- 2,89,56,222
 DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT



In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby submits its responsibility Statement:




in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;



The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;



The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;



The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;



The Company being unlisted, sub clause (e) of section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to laying down internal financial controls is not applicable to the Company; and


The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively
 na
 <p>Company has complied with the provision of section 186 of Companies act 2013 in relation to Loan, Investment & Guarantee given by the</p><p>company during the financial year under review.</p>
 <p>PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES</p><p>There were no contract or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under</p><p>review. (Annexure II)</p><p>FORM NO. AOC -2</p><p>(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.</p><p>Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of</p><p>section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.</p><p>Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.—NO TRANSACTION DURING THE YEAR</p><p>SL. No. Particulars Details</p><p>Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship</p><p>Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction</p><p>Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction</p><p>Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any</p><p>Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’</p><p>Date of approval by the Board</p><p>Amount paid as advances, if any</p><p>Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under first proviso to section 188</p><p>Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.—NO TRANSACTION DURING THE YEAR</p><p>SL. No. Particulars Details</p><p>Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship</p><p>Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction</p><p>Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction</p><p>Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any</p><p>Date of approval by the Board</p><p>Amount paid as advances, if any</p><p />Form shall be signed by the people who have signed the Board’s Report.  <p />
 false
 false
 2021-10-11
 <p />NA  <p />
 <p />The provisions of Section 149 for appointment of Independent Directors do not apply to the company.  <p />
 <p />na  <p />
 <p />NA  <p />
 DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES
<p />


<p>As per the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to incur expenditure towards CSR activities to the extent of Rs. 14,67,606/- (Rupees Fourteen Lakhs Sixtyseven Thousand Six Hundred Six only) for the financial year 2019-20.However, during the financial year 2020-21, company has paid toAkshayaPatra FoundationsRs- 21,88,000 for the Education and providing mid-day meal to underprivileged children, ensuring a healthy balance meal and prevent drop out in School and also forEnvironmental Project and other purposes as suggested in schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013, and it’s treated as part of CSR activities, under Education purpose, as given in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.</p><p>  </p>
 FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY.


<p>The Board report has prepared based on the Standalone&Consolidated financial statements of the Company.</p><p /><table><tbody><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p />Amount in Rs.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Particulars</p><p>As at the end of current reporting period</p><p>As at the end of previous reporting period</p><p>As at the end of current reporting period</p><p>As at the end of previous reporting period</p><p /><p>Standalone</p><p>Consolidated (CFS)</p><p>Total Revenue</p><p>94,60,25,002</p><p>79,34,43,044</p><p>95,20,06,567</p><p>80,25,17,665</p><p>Total Expenses</p><p>73,36,96,261</p><p>77,02,17,617</p><p>73,91,96,308</p><p>77,83,88,186</p><p>Profit or Loss before Exceptional and Extraordinary items and Tax</p><p>21,23,28,741</p><p>2,32,25,428</p><p>21,28,10,259</p><p>2,41,29,478</p><p>Less: Exceptional Items</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Less: Extraordinary Items</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Profit or Loss before Tax</p><p>21,23,28,741</p><p>2,32,25,428</p><p>21,28,10,259</p><p>2,41,29,478</p><p>Less/(add): Tax Liability for earlier years</p><p>-</p><p>-</p><p>-</p><p>2,98,329</p><p>Less: Current Tax</p><p>6,08,52,057</p><p>1,10,35,529</p><p>6,10,18,674</p><p>1,10,35,529</p><p>Deferred Tax</p><p>6,81,662</p><p>39,99,133</p><p>6,81,662</p><p>39,99,133</p><p>Profit or Loss after Tax</p><p>15,07,95,023</p><p>81,90,765</p><p>15,11,09,923</p><p>87,96,487</p><p>Less: Adjustment for Subsidiary & Associate Co.</p><p>NA</p><p>NA</p><p>(2,86,274)</p><p>(4,42,979)</p><p>Profit or Loss after adj. for Sub. & Associate Co.</p><p>NA</p><p>NA</p><p>15,08,23,650</p><p>83,53,508</p><p>Add: Balance as per last Balance Sheet</p><p>32,91,15,827</p><p>33,15,55,082</p><p>28,76,95,721</p><p>29,16,97,241</p><p>Less: other adjustments</p><p>-</p><p>1,06,30,020</p><p>19,22,835</p><p>1,23,55,030</p><p>Balance Transferred to Balance Sheet</p><p>47,99,10,850</p><p>32,91,15,827</p><p>43,65,96,536</p><p>28,76,95,721</p><p /><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr></tbody></table><p>  </p>
 <p />NA  <p />
 <p />Mr. Abhijit Talekar has resigned from the Board of the Director of the Company with effect from 28th September, 2021.The Board places our records its appreciation for the valuable contribution made to the Company during the tenure as a Director,during the year under review. In view of the applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not mandatorily required to appoint any whole time KMPs.<p /><p>  </p>
 <p />NA  <p />
 <p />NA  <p />
 <p />NA  <p />
 <p />

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND TRIBUNALS
<p />


<p>No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.</p><p>  </p>
 <p />NA  <p />
 DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES
<p />


<p>As per the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to incur expenditure towards CSR activities to the extent of Rs. 14,67,606/- (Rupees Fourteen Lakhs Sixtyseven Thousand Six Hundred Six only) for the financial year 2019-20.However, during the financial year 2020-21, company has paid toAkshayaPatra FoundationsRs- 21,88,000 for the Education and providing mid-day meal to underprivileged children, ensuring a healthy balance meal and prevent drop out in School and also forEnvironmental Project and other purposes as suggested in schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013, and it’s treated as part of CSR activities, under Education purpose, as given in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.</p><p>  </p>
 <p />NA  <p />
 DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM
<p />


<p>The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.</p><p /><p>  </p>
 DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM
<p />


<p>The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.</p><p /><p>  </p><p>  </p>
 <p />NA  <p />
 0
 false
 false
 Akshaya Patra
Foundations
 Education
 MUMBAI
 Maharashtra
 MUMBAI
 0
 2188000
 2188000
 By Trusts/Societies/Section 8 company set up by Central or State Government or entities established under special Act of Parliament/State Legislature
 Equity method
 M M MURARKA SHARE & SEECURITIES PVT LTD
 INDIA
 U67110WB1995PTC076260
 AABCM7219F
 true
 NA
 NA
 0.2698
 0
 104205500
 2920290
 2021-03-31
 SAAHIL
 MANOJ
 MURARKA
 DIRECTOR
 06717827
 2021-10-11
 JITENDRA
 SONI
 DIRECTOR
 05180177
 2021-10-11
 JITENDRA
 SONI
 DIRECTOR
 05180177
 2021-09-06
 SAAHIL
 MANOJ
 MURARKA
 DIRECTOR
 06717827
 2021-09-06
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 1228287
 Nil (P.Y. 2,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- of KPR Mill Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 34,000 ( P.Y. Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Asian Granito India Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 13370616
 Nil (P.Y: 10,268) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Automotive Axles Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 4977321
 16,000 (P.Y: 11,284) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- of Caplin Point Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 10192849
 Nil (P.Y: 40,440) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Jay Bharat Maruti Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 11800081
 7,000 (P.Y: 18,244) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Sagar Cement Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 12244847
 Nil (P.Y: 43,800) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Himmatsingka Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 1505186
 Nil (P.Y: 56,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- of Prozone Intu Properties Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 43,000 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of  Sakar Healthcare Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 88,000 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Kirloskar Ferrous Industries Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 12,400 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Kajaria Ceramics Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 32,651 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Ramco Systems Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 7,450 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Triton Valves Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 3,000 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Rajratan Global Wire Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 88,000 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Thirumalai Chemicals Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 9,700 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of SKF India Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 5,20,000(P.Y Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of C.G Power & Solutions Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 27900 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- of Century Textiles Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 43,000 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Apcotex Lat Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 12,400 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Kansai Nerolac Paints Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 34,000(P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Bhansali Engineering Polymers ltd
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 14129315
 5,00,000 (P.Y.: 5,00,000)  Equity Shares of SGD 1/-
each in B & K Securities Pte Ltd. Singapore
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 15831717
 1,80,000 (P.Y.: 1,80,000)  Equity Shares of GBP 1/-
each in B & K Securities Ltd. U.K.
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 49050000
 37,05,000 (P.Y.: 37,05,000)  Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
each in Neem Tree Insurance Broking & Advisory Private Limited
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 10971987
 1,02,510 (P.Y.: 1,02,510)  Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
each in Krypton Intra Private Limited
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 8049000
 8,04,900 (P.Y.: 8,04,900)  Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each in Maximus Investment Advisory  Private Limited
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 1845000
 1,84,500 (P.Y.: 1,84,500) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 
Panna & Prajna Art Advisory  Pvt Ltd
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 3097142
 11,54,285 (P.Y.:11,54,285)  Equity Shares of  Rs. 10/-
each in Sankalp Retail Value Stores Private Limited
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 104205500
 29,20,290 (P.Y.: 29,20,290) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 
M.M. Murarka Share & Securities Pvt. Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 10645000
 2,36,556 (P.Y.: 2,36,556) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 
   Batlivala & Karani Capital Pvt. Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 41803875
 5,95,786 (P.Y.: 5,95,786) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 
Batlivala & Karani Resources Management Pvt Ltd
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 1918605
 3,29,430.594 Units (P.Y.: NIL) at a Face Value of  10/-(P.Y.Rs.nil)- each 
ICICI Liquid M F
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 65
 Nil (P.Y.:13) Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each in Third Watch
 Investments in mutual funds
 Other investments 
 Investment in MF instruments
 2000000
 Nil (P.Y.:2,00,000) Mutual Fund Units of Rs10/- each in HDFC Charity fund
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 Nil (P.Y. 2,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- of KPR Mill Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 6039954
 34,000 ( P.Y. Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Asian Granito India Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 Nil (P.Y: 10,268) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Automotive Axles Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 7442798
 16,000 (P.Y: 11,284) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- of Caplin Point Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 Nil (P.Y: 40,440) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Jay Bharat Maruti Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 4964875
 7,000 (P.Y: 18,244) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Sagar Cement Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 Nil (P.Y: 43,800) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Himmatsingka Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 0
 Nil (P.Y: 56,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- of Prozone Intu Properties Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 4405915
 43,000 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of  Sakar Healthcare Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 10866781
 88,000 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Kirloskar Ferrous Industries Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 10254935
 12,400 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Kajaria Ceramics Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 19486596
 32,651 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Ramco Systems Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 7923418
 7,450 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Triton Valves Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 1842941
 3,000 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Rajratan Global Wire Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 8872606
 88,000 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Thirumalai Chemicals Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 22281279
 9,700 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of SKF India Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 10450941
 5,20,000(P.Y Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of C.G Power & Solutions Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 13035969
 27900 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- of Century Textiles Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 7807217
 43,000 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Apcotex Lat Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 7242120
 12,400 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Kansai Nerolac Paints Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Quoted
 4837636
 34,000(P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Bhansali Engineering Polymers ltd
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 14129315
 5,00,000 (P.Y.: 5,00,000)  Equity Shares of SGD 1/-
each in B & K Securities Pte Ltd. Singapore
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 15831717
 1,80,000 (P.Y.: 1,80,000)  Equity Shares of GBP 1/-
each in B & K Securities Ltd. U.K.
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 49050000
 37,05,000 (P.Y.: 37,05,000)  Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
each in Neem Tree Insurance Broking & Advisory Private Limited
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 10971987
 1,02,510 (P.Y.: 1,02,510)  Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
each in Krypton Intra Private Limited
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 8049000
 8,04,900 (P.Y.: 8,04,900)  Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each in Maximus Investment Advisory  Private Limited
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 1845000
 1,84,500 (P.Y.: 1,84,500) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 
Panna & Prajna Art Advisory  Pvt Ltd
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 3097142
 11,54,285 (P.Y.:11,54,285)  Equity Shares of  Rs. 10/-
each in Sankalp Retail Value Stores Private Limited
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 104205500
 29,20,290 (P.Y.: 29,20,290) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 
M.M. Murarka Share & Securities Pvt. Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 10645000
 2,36,556 (P.Y.: 2,36,556) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 
   Batlivala & Karani Capital Pvt. Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Unquoted
 41803875
 5,95,786 (P.Y.: 5,95,786) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 
Batlivala & Karani Resources Management Pvt Ltd
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 Investment in MF instruments
 99995000
 3,29,430.594 Units (P.Y.: NIL) at a Face Value of  10/-(P.Y.Rs.nil)- each 
ICICI Liquid M F
 SAAHIL MURARKA
 13315004
 .51
 0
 .51
 BATLIVALA & KARANI RESOURCES MANAGEMENT PVT. LTD
 12792936
 .49
 0
 .49
 MAXIMUS INVESTMENT ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 U67190MH2004PTC148069
 AADCM9790P
 Section 2(87)(ii)
 true
 T67640169
 false
 2020-04-01
 2021-03-31
 .9999
 INR
 NA
 8050000
 -11166997
 13374803
 16491800
 11054000
 0
 -140148
 0
 -140148
 0
 KRYPTON INTRA PVT LTD
 INDIA
 U65993WB1994PTC064407
 AACCK1123D
 Section 2(87)(ii)
 true
 T67717587
 false
 2020-04-01
 2021-03-31
 .51
 INR
 NA
 2010000
 66879897
 68918217
 68918217
 53921527
 437465
 360309
 86162
 274147
 0
 NEEM TREE INSURANCE BROKING & ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 U67200WB2005PTC106149
 AACCK7371H
 Section 2(87)(ii)
 true
 T68985753
 false
 2020-04-01
 2021-03-31
 .9987
 INR
 NA
 37100000
 6163828
 45674005
 45674005
 0
 4284940
 275933
 80455
 195478
 0
 PANNA & PRAJNA ART ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED.
 INDIA
 U74994WB2008PTC123648
 AAECP5719N
 Section 2(87)(ii)
 true
 T67726737
 false
 2020-04-01
 2021-03-31
 .9736
 INR
 NA
 1895000
 -542655
 1575945
 1575945
 1342035
 0
 -14576
 0
 -14576
 0
 Batlivala & Karani Sec. Pte. Ltd.
 SINGAPORE
 AAECB1315J
 BYWAZ20060456
 Section 2(87)(ii)
 false
 It is a foreign company, so not applicable
 false
 2020-04-01
 2021-03-31
 1
 SGD
 INR
 14515000
 13991477
 711712
 188189
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 Batlivala & Karani Sec Ltd
 UNITED KINGDOM
 BYWAZ20070251
 Section 2(87)(ii)
 false
 It is a foreign company, so not applicable
 false
 2020-04-01
 2021-03-31
 1
 GBP
 INR
 14553607
 -14553607
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 Auditors firm 
 AGARWAL
SANGANERIA &
CO.
 Saket Sanganeria
 317224E
 300679
 208, Maker Bhawan
3, 21 New Marine
Lines, Mumbai-
400020
 AADFA8676M
 G72497522
 2021-09-06
 2021-09-06
 ROHIT VASUDEV BHAT
 00049049
 ACCPB6722C
 1971-05-30
 Director
 B.COM
 0
 5645070
 0
 5645070
 5645070
 SAAHIL MANOJ MURARKA
 06717827
 AOLPM0168G
 1990-11-11
 Director
 Bachelor of computer science
 13315004
 15746004
 0
 15746004
 15746004
 JITENDRA SONI
 05180177
 AXPPS8968R
 1975-05-06
 Director
 C.A/C.S
 0
 4423066
 0
 0
 4423066
 4423066
 OM PRAKASH TRIPATHY
 AGXPT8364M
 1975-12-02
 Company Secretary
 C.A/C.S
 0
 0
 0
 0
 ABHIJIT PANDHARINATH TALEKAR
 08561428
 AFWPT3967N
 1981-09-20
 Director
 Bachelor of Arts
 0
 3680734
 0
 3680734
 3680734
 9971
 FINANCIAL AND RELATED SERVICES
 901330242
 99715210
 690549530
 0
 901330242
 0
 M M MURARKA SHARE & SEECURITIES PVT LTD
 INDIA
 AABCM7219F
 U67110WB1995PTC076260
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Associate
 Reimbursement of expenses, rent paid
 0
 120000
 97836
 0
 0
 0
 BATLIVALA & KARANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AABCB7986Q
 U67190WB1992PTC053980
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
 Brokerage Received, loans and advances given and taken
 1033929
 28300520
 54418820
 240848
 1370000
 0
 0
 Jitendra Soni
 INDIA
 AXPPS8968R
 NA
 Key Management Personnel
 Director Remuneration
 4444666
 0
 0
 BATLIVALA & KARANI
 INDIA
 AAAFB6997K
 NA
 Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
 Rent Paid
 0
 1800000
 0
 0
 MAXIMUS INVESTMENT ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AADCM9790P
 U67190MH2004PTC148069
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Subsidiary company
 Loan advances given
 0
 0
 16480000
 0
 0
 NEEM TREE INSURANCE BROKING & ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AACCK7371H
 U67200WB2005PTC106149
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Subsidiary company
 loan and advances given and taken, Reimbursement
 1615000
 0
 0
 0
 2315000
 0
 0
 PANNA & PRAJNA ART ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED.
 INDIA
 AAECP5719N
 U74994WB2008PTC123648
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Subsidiary company
 Loan and advances given and taken, Reimbursement
 200000
 0
 0
 Saahil Murarka
 INDIA
 AOLPM0168G
 NA
 Key Management Personnel
 Director Remuneration
 15767604
 0
 0
 B & K Securities Pte. Ltd.
 SINGAPORE
 200513960K
 NA
 Subsidiary company
 NA
 683758
 0
 0
 M M MURARKA SHARE & SEECURITIES PVT LTD
 INDIA
 AABCM7219F
 U67110WB1995PTC076260
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Associate
 Reimbursement of expenses, rent paid
 0
 120000
 97836
 17035
 0
 0
 BATLIVALA & KARANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AABCB7986Q
 U67190WB1992PTC053980
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
 Brokerage Received, loans and advances given and taken
 3381568
 28300520
 28598700
 2214916
 39818300
 0
 0
 Jitendra Soni
 INDIA
 AXPPS8968R
 NA
 Key Management Personnel
 Director Remuneration
 4052670
 0
 0
 BATLIVALA & KARANI
 INDIA
 AAAFB6997K
 NA
 Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
 Rent Paid
 0
 1800000
 0
 0
 MAXIMUS INVESTMENT ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AADCM9790P
 U67190MH2004PTC148069
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Subsidiary company
 Loan advances given
 1615000
 1500000
 16480000
 0
 0
 NEEM TREE INSURANCE BROKING & ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AACCK7371H
 U67200WB2005PTC106149
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Subsidiary company
 loan and advances given and taken, Reimbursement
 12000000
 18900
 700000
 0
 0
 PANNA & PRAJNA ART ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED.
 INDIA
 AAECP5719N
 U74994WB2008PTC123648
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Subsidiary company
 Loan and advances given and taken, Reimbursement
 200000
 0
 0
 Saahil Murarka
 INDIA
 AOLPM0168G
 NA
 Key Management Personnel
 Membership fees, Director Remuneration
 5675004
 0
 0
 B & K Securities Pte. Ltd.
 SINGAPORE
 200513960K
 NA
 Subsidiary company
 NA
 683758
 0
 0
 MAXIMUS INVESTMENT ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 26/27, Khatau Building , A.D. Modi Marg, Mumbai - 400 001
 INDIA
 U67190MH2004PTC148069
 Subsidiary
 0.9999
 2(6)
 KRYPTON INTRA PVT LTD
 7, Lyons Range, 3rd Floor, Room No. 3&4, Kolkata- 700 001
 INDIA
 U65993WB1994PTC064407
 Subsidiary
 0.51
 2(87)(ii)
 NEEM TREE INSURANCE BROKING & ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 7, Lyons Range, 3rd Floor, Room No. 3&4, Kolkata- 700 001
 INDIA
 U67200WB2005PTC106149
 Subsidiary
 0.9987
 2(87)(ii)
 PANNA & PRAJNA ART ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED.
 7, Lyons Range, 3rd Floor, Room No. 3&4, Kolkata- 700 001.
 INDIA
 U74994WB2008PTC123648
 Subsidiary
 0.9736
 2(87)(ii)
 Batlivala & Karani Sec. Pte. Ltd.
 22 Malacca Street, #04-03 RB Capital Building, Singapore 048980
 SINGAPORE
 Subsidiary
 1
 2(87)(ii)
 Batlivala & Karani Sec Ltd.
 2 Stone Buildings, Lincoin’s Inn, London, WC2A3TH
 UNITED KINGDOM
 Subsidiary
 1
 2(87)(ii)
 
 
 Interest income  :  -10460049
Net (gain) / loss on sale of Long Term investments  :  17558617
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets  :  0
 
 
 Interest income  :  -13825806
Net (gain) / loss on sale of Long Term investments  :  29992993
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets  :  4323747
 
 
 Provision for past Gratuity liability  :  0
Provision for current year taxation  :  -60852057
 
 
 Provision for past Gratuity liability  :  -10630020
Provision for current year taxation  :  -11035529
 
 
 Other current liabilities  :  36163062
Short-term provisions  :  19938513
 
 
 Other current liabilities  :  4933629
Short-term provisions  :  -492961
 
 
 Short-term loans and advances  :  -16617601
Long-term loans and advances  :  11457275
Other current assets  :  4263112
 
 
 Short-term loans and advances  :  2007770
Long-term loans and advances  :  -15384224
Other current assets  :  -22381384
 
 
 - Purchased  :  -424697986
- Proceeds from sale  :  349559939
- Others  :  847274
- Others  :  -97995000
 
 
 - Purchased  :  -54453267
- Proceeds from sale  :  90873844
- Others  :  0
- Others  :  0
 
 
 Oustanding more than six month from the date they are due for payment  :  3703190
Other Trade receivables  :  22238232
 
 
 Oustanding more than six month from the date they are due for payment  :  5018115
Other Trade receivables  :  33153442
 
 
 Fixed Deposit Margins for NSE Futures & Options@  :  25800000
Fixed Deposit as Bank Guarantee for Stock Exchange Margins#  :  95500000
Fixed Deposit with Axis Bank  :  69800000
Mis.  :  17520132
 
 
 Fixed Deposit Margins for NSE Futures & Options@  :  25800000
Fixed Deposit as Bank Guarantee for Stock Exchange Margins#  :  99434575
Fixed Deposit with Axis Bank  :  64445785
Mis.  :  21377380
 
 
 ABCL  :  0
(ii) Creditors for Expenses  :  44221529
CFCI  :  683758
(i) Statutory Remittances  :  57917169
 
 
 ABCL  :  113025
(ii) Creditors for Expenses  :  29992444
CFCI  :  683758
(i) Statutory Remittances  :  35870167
 
 
 Mr. Abhijit Talekar has resigned from the Board of the Director of the Company with effect from 28th September, 2021
 
 
 Brokerage (Equity & Mutual Funds)  :  818229024
Professional Fees Received  :  4400000
Business Support Service Fees (Export Income)  :  33550243
Brokerage from Merchant Banking (Gross)  :  45150975
 
 
 Brokerage (Equity & Mutual Funds)  :  713144968
Professional Fees Received  :  2050000
Business Support Service Fees (Export Income)  :  38741426
Brokerage from Merchant Banking (Gross)  :  15256207
 
 
 Salaries, Bonus & Allowances  :  426484619
Director Salary  :  29581274
 
 
 Salaries, Bonus & Allowances  :  397789526
Director Salary  :  26728987
 
 
 Plant & Machinery  :  2381085
Others  :  1081915
 
 
 Plant & Machinery  :  2418088
Others  :  2514129
 
 
 SEBI Turnover Fees and Interest thereon  :  739148
Demat Custodial Charges  :  228873
Stamp Duty  :  10533200
STP Charges  :  16680164
SEGC  :  1996588
Penalty  :  354523
Transaction Charges  :  23523471
 
 
 SEBI Turnover Fees and Interest thereon  :  1006943
Demat Custodial Charges  :  85315
Stamp Duty  :  14583795
STP Charges  :  14742299
SEGC  :  5478711
Penalty  :  0
Transaction Charges  :  26199844
 
 
 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility  :  0
Sundry Expenses  :  15280734
Exchange Rate Fluctuation (Net)  :  520702
Deferred Revenue Exp.w/off (Refer note 28)  :  5047748
 
 
 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility  :  2635200
Sundry Expenses  :  4790669
Exchange Rate Fluctuation (Net)  :  219559
Deferred Revenue Exp.w/off (Refer note 28)  :  2841122
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 Note 31 Employee Benefits disclosures under Accounting Standards-15











(i) Defined contribution plans






The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.  The Company recognised ` 45,52,031/- (Year ended 31 March, 2020 ` 46,80,340/- for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. 









(ii) Defined benefit plans






The Company offers the employee benefit in the form of Gratuity only to its employees:




The following table sets out the funded status of the defined benefit schemes and the amount recognised in the financial statements: 





Particulars

 Year ended 31 March, 2021 

 Year ended 31 March, 2020 






 ` 

 ` 






Components of employer expense

 

 






Current service cost

                   5,993,397 

              5,874,046 






Past service cost-Vested

                              -   

                         -   






Past service cost-Unvested

                              -   

                 283,325 






Interest cost

                   2,861,748 

              3,094,144 






Expected return on plan assets

                   2,858,615 

              2,910,957 






Actuarial (losses)/gains

                    (323,150)

              3,296,029 






Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

                 6,319,680 

            3,044,529 






Actual contribution and benefit payments for year 

 

 






Actual benefit payments

                   6,535,008 

              4,452,188 






Actual contributions

                   3,044,529 

              5,237,490 






Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet 

 

 






Present value of defined benefit obligation

                 49,313,351 

             46,778,422 






Fair value of plan assets

                 42,993,671 

             43,733,893 






Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet

               (6,319,680)

           (3,044,529)






Unrecognised Past Service Cost

                              -   

 






Net Liability 

               (6,319,680)

           (3,044,529)






Net Liability is bifurcated as follows:

 

 






Non-Current

                      221,582 

                         -   






Current

                   6,098,098 

              3,044,529 

















Particulars

 Year ended 31 March, 2021 

 Year ended 31 March, 2020 






 ` 

 ` 






 

 

 






Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the year 

 

 






Present value of DBO at beginning of the year

                 46,778,422 

             45,483,138 






Unfunded portion of Gratuity Obligation (Previous years)

                              -   

                         -   






Current service cost 

                   5,993,397 

              5,874,046 






Interest cost 

                   2,861,748 

              3,094,144 






Actuarial (losses)/gains

                    (214,792)

              3,220,718 






Benefits paid

                   6,535,008 

              4,452,188 






Present value of DBO at the end of the year

               49,313,351 

          46,778,422 






 

 

 






Change in fair value of assets during the year 

 

 






Plan assets at beginning of the year

                 43,733,893 

             39,962,323 






Expected return on plan assets

                   2,858,615 

              2,910,957 






Actual company contributions

                   3,044,529 

              5,237,490 






Actuarial gain / (loss)

                    (108,358)

                   75,311 






Benefits paid

                   6,535,008 

              4,452,188 






Plan assets at the end of the year

               42,993,671 

          43,733,893 






 

 

 






Actual return on plan assets

                            2,966,973 

                      2,835,646 






 

 

 






Composition of the plan assets is as follows:

 

 






Government bonds

                 42,993,671 

             43,733,893 






Actuarial assumptions

 

 






Discount rate

6.55%

6.55%






Expected return on plan assets

6.55%

6.55%






Salary esclation

8.80%

8.80%






Attrition

7%-15%

7%-15%

















1.The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.






2.The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant factors.






3.The management has already contributed amount of Rs. 63.20 Lakh into the Gratuity fund set up by the LIC before income tax filling of return of FY 2020-21.
 Effect of a 1% change in health care cost 

 
 
Particulars
 ` 
 ` 

 31 March, 2021
  31 March, 2020 

 Increase by 1% 
 Decrease by 1% 
 Increase by 1% 
 Decrease by 1% 
 

 
 
 
Aggregate current service and interest cost
          88,551 
       88,551 
          89,682 
          89,682 
Closing balance of obligation
    49,401,902 
 49,224,800 
    46,868,104 
    46,688,740 

 
 
 
 
Experience adjustments 

 
 
 
Particulars
 2019- 2020 
 2nd prior year 
 3rd prior year 


 ` 
 ` 
 ` 

Present value of DBO
    46,778,422 
 45,483,138 
    39,409,567 

Fair value of plan assets
    43,733,893 
 39,962,323 
    29,621,936 

Funded status Deficit
    (3,044,529)
  (5,520,815)
    (9,787,631)

 
 

 
 

Particulars
 For the year ended 31 March, 2021 
 For the year ended 31 March, 2020 

 
 
 
 

 
Actuarial assumptions for long-term compensated absences
 
 

 
Discount rate
6.55%
6.55%

 
Expected return on plan assets
6.55%
6.55%

 
Salary escalation
8.80%
8.80%

 
Attrition (Refer point no.3)
7%-15%
7%-15%

 
1.The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.
2.The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant factors.

3. The management estimates of the level of attrition in the company over the long term. Estimated withdrawls rates should take into account the broad economic  
overlook, type of sector the company operates in and measures taken by the management to retain/relieve the employees..
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 c) Investments

Investments are classified into Current investments and long- term investments.


i) Long-term Investments have been accounted at cost. Provision for diminution in value of investment is made only if the decline in the value of investment is permanent in nature.

ii)&nbsp;Current Investments are stated at lower of cost or net realizable value.
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i) Long-term Investments have been accounted at cost. Provision for diminution in value of investment is made only if the decline in the value of investment is permanent in nature.


ii) Current Investments are stated at lower of cost or net realizable value.
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 <p>Note 1 forming part of the consolidated financial statements</p><p>Significant accounting policies </p><table><tbody><tr><td><p>a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements</p>


<p>• The accompanying financial statements are prepared under historical cost conventions in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the applicable accounting standards referred to under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 as issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time. The disclosures are made in accordance with the requirements of Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards as applicable to the company.</p><p>(ii) The Company is following mercantile system of accounting and recognizes Income & Expenditure on Accrual basis except for Dividend Income, Bonus, and other retirement benefits to employees etc. which are accounted on cash basis.<p /><p />b)   Use of Estimates<p><p>The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses during the period. Differences between actual and estimates are recognized in the period in which the result are known or are materialised.</p><p>c) Investments</p><p>Investments are classified into Current investments and long- term investments.</p><p />i) Long-term Investments have been accounted at cost. Provision for diminution in value of investment is made only if the decline in the value of investment is permanent in nature.</p><p />ii) Current Investments are stated at lower of cost or net realizable value. <p /><p />d)      Tangible Fixed Assets<p /><p>Tangible Fixed Assets have been stated at actual cost of acquisition or constructions, including incidental expenses. They are stated at historical cost. Actual cost is inclusive of installation cost, freight, duties, taxes, financing cost and other incidental expenses but net of CENVAT.</p><p />e)      Impairment of Assets<p /><p>The Company, at each balance sheet date, assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of any assets and/or cash generating unit. If such indication exists, assets are impaired by comparing carrying amount of each assets and/or cash generating units to the recoverable amount being higher of the net selling price or value in use. Value in use are determined from the present value of the estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of the assets. </p><p />f)      Intangible Assets & Amortization<p /><p>(i) Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less amortization.</p><p>(ii) These intangible assets are amortized as below:</p><p>Stock Exchange Membership Card : 10 Years</p><p>Computer Software : 3 Years</p><p>Website: 5 Years</p><p />g) Depreciation <p /><p>(i) Tangible Assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset are added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. <br></br><br></br>Depreciation is provided on tangible asset on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset or as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.<br></br><br></br>Management’s estimates of the useful lives of certain assets are as follows: <br></br><br></br>a. Air Conditioners: 15 years<br></br>b. Electrical Appliances: 15 years<br></br>c. Furniture and Fixtures: 15 years<br></br>d. Art and Paintings: 15 years<br></br><br></br>For the above class of assets, based on internal assessment, management believes that the useful lives as given above best represents the period over which the asset would be used.</p><p>(ii) Individual Assets costing less then Rs.5,000/- have been depreciated in full in the year of purchase. </p><p>h) Retirement Benefits</p><p />(i)   Gratuity:<p /><p>Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year. However, the company through its Trust has taken a policy with LIC to cover the gratuity liability of the employees. The difference between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year-end and the balance of funds with LIC is provided for as liability in the books.</p><p>(ii) Provident Fund:</p><p>The Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund and Pension Fund is charged against revenue on accrual basis.</p><p>(iii) Leave Encashment:</p><p>Company does not extends the benefit of leave encashment to its employees while in service as well as on retirement from service of the company.</p><p>i) Revenue Recognition</p><p>All revenues including interest are recognised on accrual basis except Dividend income, which is recognized on cash basis.</p><p>j) Miscellaneous Expenditure</p><p>Miscellaneous expenditure represents only deferred revenue expenses. </p><p>(i) Deferred revenue expenditure is written off over the period of benefit, whenever the exact period of benefit can be determined. Other deferred revenue expenditures, where period of benefit cannot be exactly determined, are written off over a period of 5 to 10 years. </p><p> </p><p>k) Provisions & Contingences</p><p>(i) The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.</p><p>(ii) Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjust to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.</p><p>(iii) Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contigent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the assets and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs. </p><p>l) Taxes on Income </p><p>i) Current Tax: - Provision for Current Tax is computed as per the provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961.</p><p>(ii) Deferred Tax:- Deferred tax is recognized in accordance with Accounting standard 22 on “Accounting for Taxes on income” issued by, The Institute of chartered Accountants of India. Tax expenses comprise of both current and deferred tax. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities using the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax asset and liabilities are recognised for future tax consequences attributable to timing differences between taxable income and accounting income that are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and are measured using relevant enacted tax rates.</p><p>(iii) MAT Credit Entitlement :-Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.</p><p />m)  Earning Per Share<p /><p>The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting Standard-20 Earnings per share prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.</p><p>Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.</p><p />n)  Foreign Exchange Transactions<p /><p>i) Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. All monetary items, which comprises of Monetary Assets and Monetary Liabilities are translated at the year end at the closing rates prevailing on the last day of the year. Any foreign exchange gain or loss arising from the settlement of transaction or translation of monetary items at the year end is recognized as income and expense, as the case may be, for the year.</p><p>ii) Non – monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non – monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.</p><p>o) Leases</p><p>i) Finance Leases, which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risk and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items, are capitalized at the lower oh the fair value and present value oh the minimum Lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. </p><p>ii)Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged directly against income. </p><p>iii) Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct cost are capitalized.</p><p>iv) If there is no reasonable certainty that the company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assets or the lease term.</p><p>v) Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating Lease payments are recognised as expenses in the Profit & Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.</p><p>p) CENVAT </p><p>i) Cenvat benefit is accounted by reducing the purchase cost of Services and Fixed Assets for which Cenvat credit is available as per the Cenvat Credit Rules as amended from time to time.</p><p>ii) Cenvat Credit is availed only on payment basis and is adjusted against the Service Tax liability. No Cenvat is availed where payment is outstanding. </p><p>iii) The credit of Cenvat, which is not availed in the current financial year is carried forward and availed in the subsequent year.</p><p> </p><p /> </p></td></tr></tbody></table><p> </p><table><tbody><tr><td><p>q) Principal of Consolidation</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>The consolidated financial information incorporates the results of the parent and its subsidiary & Associated companies. The control is normally evidenced when the company is able to govern another company’s financial and operating policies so has to benefit from its activities or where the company owns, either directly or indirectly, the majority of another company’s equity voting rights unless in exceptional circumstances it can be demonstrated that ownership does not constitute control.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Particulars of subsidiary are given below:-</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Name of the Company<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />Country of incorporation <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />% of voting power held on 31.03.2021<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />% of voting power held on 31.03.2020<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Krypton Intra Private Limited</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>India</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>51.00%</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>51.00%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>B&K Securities Limited UK</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>UK</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>100.00%</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>100.00%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Maximus Investment Advisory Pvt. Ltd.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>India</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>99.99%</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>99.99%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Neem Tree Insurance Broking & Advisory Pvt. Ltd.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>India</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>99.87%</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>99.87%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Panna & Prajna Art Advisory Private Limited</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>India</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>97.36%</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>97.36%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>B&K Securities Pte.Limited- Singapore</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>Singapore</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>100.00%</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>100.00%</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Particulars of Associated are given below:-</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />Name of the Company<p /></td><td><p />Country of incorporation <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />% of voting power held on 31.03.2016<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />% of voting power held on 31.03.2015<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>M.M. Murarka Shares & Securities Pvt. Ltd.</p></td><td><p>India</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>26.98%</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>26.98%</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><table><tbody><tr><td><p>r) Goodwill</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Goodwill represents the difference between the Group’s share in the share value of subsidiaries and the cost of acquisition at each point of time of making the investment in the subsidiaries. For this purpose, the Group’s share of net worth is determined on the basis of the latest financial statements prior to the acquisition after making necessary adjustments for material events between the date of such financial statements and the date of respective acquisition.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Goodwill arising out of consolidation of financial statements of Subsidiaries/Associated and joint Ventures is not amortised. However the same is tested for impairment at each Balance Sheet Date.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />s) Basis of preparation of consolidated Financial Statement<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise of the financial statement of the company and its subsidiary/Associated companies</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• Reference in theses notes to the ‘company’ shall mean to include M/s BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES INDIA PVT. LTD. and its subsidiary/Associated consolidated in these financial statements unless otherwise stated.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The consolidated financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the mandatory Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The financial statement of the company and its subsidiary companies have been considered on a line by line basis by adding together the value like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group  transactions resulting in unrealized profit or loss. </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The financial statement of the company and its Associates companies have been considered by using the equity/proportinate method in CFS. Consolidation of assets/liabilities is not done in case of assocates. Merely, the valuation of investment in the associates is valued as per equity method of accounting.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The consolidated financial statement have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented, to the extent  possible, in the same manner as the separate financial statements.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiary over the share value of the subsidiaries at the time of acquisition of share in the subsidiaries is recognised in the financial statements as goodwill, which is not being amortized, or Capital reserve as the case may be.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>• Minority interest’s share of net profit of consolidated financial statements for the year is identified and adjusted the income of the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to share holder of the company.<br></br><br></br>Minority interest’s share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated balance sheet separate from liabilities and the equity of the company’s shareholders. </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />t) Basis of Preparation and Translation into Indian Rupees:<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>The financial statements of Foreign Subsediaries have been prepared for the purpose of compliance with the provisions of Section 128 and Section 129 of the Indian Companies Act, 2013 and have been translated to Indian Rupees (Rs.) in accordance with Accounting Standard – 11 issued by the ICAI on “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”. The functional currency of the foreign subsediary Companies are their respective currencies. The financial statements are based on the Audited Financial Statements of the respectice foreign subsidiary Company prepared under applicable laws of of that country, where the Company is originally incorporated and only translation of said original audited accounts are being done therein.<br></br><br></br>The financial statements are prepared for limited purposes to submit with the Registrar of the Companies in India along with the Annual Accounts of 100% holding company i.e. Batlivala & Karani Securities India Private Limited</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>The translation of foreign currency into Rupees has been carried out:</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>a) For assets and liabilities (both monetary and non-monetary items) using the rate of exchange prevailing on the Balance Sheet date</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>b) The revenue (income & expenses) related to foreign transactions is translated at the average rates prevalent during the reporting period. However, the revenue related exceptional items are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>c) The difference in translation of monetary assets and liabilities and realized gains and losses on foreign exchange transactions, are adjusted in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve which has been shown in Reserves & Surplus, as required under Accounting Standard – 11.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>u) Other accounting policies adopted are consistent with generally accepted accounting practices.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p> </p><p />  <p />
 <p></p><table><tbody><tr><td><p>h)    Retirement Benefits</p></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i)   Gratuity:<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year. However, the company through its Trust has taken a policy with LIC/Birla Sun Life to cover the gratuity liability of the employees. The difference between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year-end and the balance of funds with LIC/Birla Sun Life is provided for as liability in the books.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii)  Provident Fund:<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund and Pension Fund is charged against revenue on accrual basis.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(iii) Leave Encashment:<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Company does not extend's the benefit of leave encashment to its employees while in service as well as on retirement from service of the company.<p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><table><tbody><tr><td><p />Note 31 Employee Benefits disclosures under Accounting Standards-15<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(i) Defined contribution plans<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.  The Company recognised ` 45,52,031/- (Year ended 31 March, 2020 ` 46,80,340/- for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />(ii) Defined benefit plans<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The Company offers the employee benefit in the form of Gratuity only to its employees:<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />The following table sets out the funded status of the defined benefit schemes and the amount recognised in the financial statements: <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p /> Year ended 31 March, 2021 <p /></td><td><p /> Year ended 31 March, 2020 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Components of employer expense<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Current service cost<p /></td><td><p />                   5,993,397 <p /></td><td><p />              5,874,046 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Past service cost-Vested<p /></td><td><p />                              -   <p /></td><td><p />                         -   <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Past service cost-Unvested<p /></td><td><p />                              -   <p /></td><td><p />                 283,325 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Interest cost<p /></td><td><p />                   2,861,748 <p /></td><td><p />              3,094,144 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Expected return on plan assets<p /></td><td><p />                   2,858,615 <p /></td><td><p />              2,910,957 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actuarial (losses)/gains<p /></td><td><p />                    (323,150)<p /></td><td><p />              3,296,029 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss<p /></td><td><p />                 6,319,680 <p /></td><td><p />            3,044,529 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actual contribution and benefit payments for year <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actual benefit payments<p /></td><td><p />                   6,535,008 <p /></td><td><p />              4,452,188 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actual contributions<p /></td><td><p />                   3,044,529 <p /></td><td><p />              5,237,490 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Present value of defined benefit obligation<p /></td><td><p />                 49,313,351 <p /></td><td><p />             46,778,422 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Fair value of plan assets<p /></td><td><p />                 42,993,671 <p /></td><td><p />             43,733,893 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet<p /></td><td><p />               (6,319,680)<p /></td><td><p />           (3,044,529)<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Unrecognised Past Service Cost<p /></td><td><p />                              -   <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net Liability <p /></td><td><p />               (6,319,680)<p /></td><td><p />           (3,044,529)<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net Liability is bifurcated as follows:<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Non-Current<p /></td><td><p />                      221,582 <p /></td><td><p />                         -   <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Current<p /></td><td><p />                   6,098,098 <p /></td><td><p />              3,044,529 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p /> Year ended 31 March, 2021 <p /></td><td><p /> Year ended 31 March, 2020 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the year <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Present value of DBO at beginning of the year<p /></td><td><p />                 46,778,422 <p /></td><td><p />             45,483,138 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Unfunded portion of Gratuity Obligation (Previous years)<p /></td><td><p />                              -   <p /></td><td><p />                         -   <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Current service cost <p /></td><td><p />                   5,993,397 <p /></td><td><p />              5,874,046 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Interest cost <p /></td><td><p />                   2,861,748 <p /></td><td><p />              3,094,144 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actuarial (losses)/gains<p /></td><td><p />                    (214,792)<p /></td><td><p />              3,220,718 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Benefits paid<p /></td><td><p />                   6,535,008 <p /></td><td><p />              4,452,188 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Present value of DBO at the end of the year<p /></td><td><p />               49,313,351 <p /></td><td><p />          46,778,422 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Change in fair value of assets during the year <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Plan assets at beginning of the year<p /></td><td><p />                 43,733,893 <p /></td><td><p />             39,962,323 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Expected return on plan assets<p /></td><td><p />                   2,858,615 <p /></td><td><p />              2,910,957 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actual company contributions<p /></td><td><p />                   3,044,529 <p /></td><td><p />              5,237,490 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actuarial gain / (loss)<p /></td><td><p />                    (108,358)<p /></td><td><p />                   75,311 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Benefits paid<p /></td><td><p />                   6,535,008 <p /></td><td><p />              4,452,188 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Plan assets at the end of the year<p /></td><td><p />               42,993,671 <p /></td><td><p />          43,733,893 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actual return on plan assets<p /></td><td><p />                            2,966,973 <p /></td><td><p />                      2,835,646 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Composition of the plan assets is as follows:<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Government bonds<p /></td><td><p />                 42,993,671 <p /></td><td><p />             43,733,893 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actuarial assumptions<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Discount rate<p /></td><td><p />6.55%<p /></td><td><p />6.55%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Expected return on plan assets<p /></td><td><p />6.55%<p /></td><td><p />6.55%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Salary esclation<p /></td><td><p />8.80%<p /></td><td><p />8.80%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Attrition<p /></td><td><p />7%-15%<p /></td><td><p />7%-15%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />1.The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />2.The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant factors.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />3.The management has already contributed amount of Rs. 63.20 Lakh into the Gratuity fund set up by the LIC before income tax filling of return of FY 2020-21.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /> Effect of a 1% change in health care cost <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /> 31 March, 2021<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />  31 March, 2020 <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /> Increase by 1% <p /></td><td><p /> Decrease by 1% <p /></td><td><p /> Increase by 1% <p /></td><td><p /> Decrease by 1% <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Aggregate current service and interest cost<p /></td><td><p />                       88,551 <p /></td><td><p />                   88,551 <p /></td><td><p />                 89,682 <p /></td><td><p />                  89,682 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Closing balance of obligation<p /></td><td><p />                 49,401,902 <p /></td><td><p />             49,224,800 <p /></td><td><p />           46,868,104 <p /></td><td><p />            46,688,740 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Experience adjustments <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p /> 2019- 2020 <p /></td><td><p /> 2nd prior year <p /></td><td><p /> 3rd prior year <p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /> ` <p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Present value of DBO<p /></td><td><p />                 46,778,422 <p /></td><td><p />             45,483,138 <p /></td><td><p />           39,409,567 <p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Fair value of plan assets<p /></td><td><p />                 43,733,893 <p /></td><td><p />             39,962,323 <p /></td><td><p />           29,621,936 <p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Funded status Deficit<p /></td><td><p />                  (3,044,529)<p /></td><td><p />             (5,520,815)<p /></td><td><p />           (9,787,631)<p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td><p /> For the year ended <br></br>31 March, 2021 <p /></td><td><p /> For the year ended <br></br>31 March, 2020 <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Actuarial assumptions for long-term compensated absences<p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Discount rate<p /></td><td><p />6.55%<p /></td><td><p />6.55%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Expected return on plan assets<p /></td><td><p />6.55%<p /></td><td><p />6.55%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Salary escalation<p /></td><td><p />8.80%<p /></td><td><p />8.80%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Attrition (Refer point no.3)<p /></td><td><p />7%-15%<p /></td><td><p />7%-15%<p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />1.The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />2.The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant factors.<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />3. The management estimates of the level of attrition in the company over the long term. Estimated withdrawls rates should take into account the broad economic  <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />   overlook, type of sector the company operates in and measures taken by the management to retain/relieve the employees..<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p>
 <table><tbody><tr><td><p />Batlivala & Karani Securities India Pvt. Ltd.<p /><p>Notes annexed to and forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements</p><p>Note 32 Segment Reporting</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>(A) Business Segments</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Particulars</p><p>Business segments</p><p>Unallocated</p><p>Total</p><p /><p>2020-21</p><p>2019-20</p><p>2020-21</p><p>2019-20</p><p>2020-21</p><p>2019-20</p><p>2020-21</p><p>2019-20</p><p>2020-21</p><p>2019-20</p><p /><p>Equity Broking</p><p>Merchant Banking</p><p>Insurance Broking</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Segment Revenue</p><p>857,102,320 </p><p>756,937,853 </p><p>45,150,975 </p><p>15,256,207 </p><p>3,361,887 </p><p>2,476,611 </p><p>46,391,386 </p><p>27,846,994 </p><p>952,006,567 </p><p>802,517,665 </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Total</p><p>857,102,320 </p><p>756,937,853 </p><p>45,150,975 </p><p>15,256,207 </p><p>3,361,887 </p><p>2,476,611 </p><p>46,391,386 </p><p>27,846,994 </p><p>952,006,567 </p><p>802,517,665 </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Segment Expenses</p><p>681,623,812 </p><p>707,105,455 </p><p>17,597,618 </p><p>21,837,380 </p><p>5,348,622 </p><p>6,466,603 </p><p>28,368,798 </p><p>32,790,083 </p><p>732,938,851 </p><p>768,199,521 </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Segment results</p><p>175,478,507 </p><p>49,832,398 </p><p>27,553,357 </p><p>-6,581,173 </p><p>-1,986,736 </p><p>-3,989,992 </p><p>18,022,587 </p><p>-4,943,089 </p><p>219,067,716 </p><p>34,318,144 </p><p>(Operating Profit before Interest & Tax)</p><p>` </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p>Interest & Finance charges</p><p /><p>6,257,457 </p><p>10,188,666 </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p>Profit Before Tax </p><p /><p>212,810,259 </p><p>24,129,478 </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p>Tax expense </p><p /><p>61,700,336 </p><p>15,332,991 </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p>Net profit for the year</p><p /><p>151,109,923 </p><p>8,796,487 </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p>(B) Other Information</p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Segment assets</p><p> </p><p>638,122,265 </p><p>3,678,537 </p><p>4,554,488 </p><p>45,674,003 </p><p>43,839,396 </p><p>980,293,014 </p><p>151,032,954 </p><p>1,029,645,554 </p><p>837,549,103 </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Segment liabilities</p><p>118,004,343 </p><p>100,545,819 </p><p>- </p><p>- </p><p>95,177 </p><p>71,047 </p><p>60,687,218 </p><p>36,892,329 </p><p>178,786,737 </p><p>137,509,194 </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Capital expenditure (allocable)</p><p>8,015,764 </p><p>17,487,555 </p><p>214,325 </p><p>460,199 </p><p>- </p><p>- </p><p>1,283,293 </p><p>2,785,264 </p><p>9,513,383 </p><p>20,733,017 </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Depericiation</p><p>9,234,486 </p><p>8,698,208 </p><p>246,911 </p><p>228,900 </p><p>59,000 </p><p>59,000 </p><p>1,007,558 </p><p>1,098,076 </p><p>10,547,955 </p><p>10,084,184 </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>(B) Geographical Segments</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Particulars</p><p>Geographical Segments</p><p>Total</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>2020-21</p><p>2019-20</p><p>2020-21</p><p>2019-20</p><p>2020-21</p><p>2019-20</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>India</p><p>Outside India</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Segment Revenue</p><p>952,006,567 </p><p>802,517,665 </p><p>- </p><p>- </p><p>952,006,567 </p><p>802,517,665 </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Total</p><p>952,006,567 </p><p>802,517,665 </p><p>- </p><p>- </p><p>952,006,567 </p><p>802,517,665 </p><p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Segment Expenses</p><p>732,938,851 </p><p>768,199,521 </p><p>- </p><p>- </p><p>732,938,851 </p><p>768,199,521 </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Segment results</p><p>219,067,716 </p><p>34,318,144 </p><p>- </p><p>- </p><p>219,067,716 </p><p>34,318,144 </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>(Operating Profit before Interest & Tax)</p><p>` </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Interest & Finance charges</p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p>6,257,457 </p><p>10,188,666 </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Profit Before Tax </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p>212,810,259 </p><p>24,129,478 </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Tax expense </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p>61,700,336 </p><p>15,332,991 </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Net profit for the year</p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p>151,109,923 </p><p>8,796,487 </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>(B) Other Information</p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Segment assets</p><p>1,028,933,547 </p><p>836,837,391 </p><p>712,007 </p><p>711,712 </p><p>1,029,645,554 </p><p>837,549,103 </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Segment liabilities</p><p>178,593,511 </p><p>137,321,005 </p><p>193,227 </p><p>188,189 </p><p>178,786,737 </p><p>137,509,194 </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Capital expenditure (allocable)</p><p>9,513,383 </p><p>20,733,017 </p><p>- </p><p>- </p><p>9,513,383 </p><p>20,733,017 </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>Depericiation</p><p>10,547,955 </p><p>10,084,184 </p><p>- </p><p>- </p><p>10,547,955 </p><p>10,084,184 </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>1.The Company has identified "Equity broking, Merchant banking and Insurence Broking division" as the only primary reportable business segments .</p><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p>2. Segment have been indentified in line with the Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (As-17), taking into account the organisation strcture as well as differential risk and returns of these segments.</p><p /><p /> </p></td></tr></tbody></table><p> </p><p> </p>
 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>o) Leases</p></td></tr><tr><td><p />i) Finance Leases, which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risk and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value or present value of the minimum Lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />ii)Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged directly against income. <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />iii) Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct cost are capitalized.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />iv) If there is no reasonable certainty that the company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assets or the lease term.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />v) Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases.  Operating Lease payments are recognised as expenses in the Profit & Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.<p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p />  <p />
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 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>Note 26 Unhedged foreign currency exposures</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /> Import Creditors <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />As at 31 March, 2021<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />As at 31 March, 2020<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /> Receivables/Payable <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> Receivables/Payable <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /> in INR <p /></td><td><p /> in Foreign currency <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> in INR <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> in Foreign currency <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p> </p></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>                   169,974 </p></td><td><p> SGD 3,122.80@ 54.43 </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>                     435,308 </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p> SGD 8211.65  </p></td></tr><tr><td><p> </p></td><td><p> </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p> </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p> </p></td></tr><tr><td><p>                   747,548 </p></td><td><p> USD 10,216.59 @ 73.17 </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>                  1,984,733 </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p> USD 26332.59 </p></td></tr><tr><td><p> </p></td><td><p> </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p> </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p> </p></td></tr><tr><td><p>                     87,586 </p></td><td><p> GBP 867.35@ 93.86 </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>                     363,835 </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p> GBP 3876.35 </p></td></tr><tr><td><p> </p></td><td><p> </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p> </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p> </p></td></tr><tr><td><p>                            -   </p></td><td><p>                             -   </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>                     191,089 </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p> Euro 2300.00 </p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p /><p> Export Debtors <p /><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>As at 31 March, 2021</p><p>As at 31 March, 2020</p><p> Receivables/Payable </p><p> Receivables/Payable </p><p> in INR </p><p> in Foreign currency </p><p> in INR </p><p> in Foreign currency </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p> </p><p>                5,402,759 </p><p> USD 73,570.31 </p><p>                  5,679,399 </p><p> USD 75,390.31 </p><p>                   897,408 </p><p>GBP 8945.00 @100.33</p><p>                       92,453 </p><p>GBP 985.00</p><p></p><p /><p> </p><p /> </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />Note 27 Expenditure and earnings in foreign exchange <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p> </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p> </p></td><td><p> </p></td><td><p> </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> For the year ended 31 March, 2021 <p /></td><td><p /> For the year ended 31 March, 2020 <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />Expenditure in foreign currency <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>STP Charges</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p> </p></td><td><p>                16,264,108 </p></td><td><p>                14,378,286 </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Foreign Travelling Exp.</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>                     863,356 </p></td><td><p>                  9,038,890 </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Professional & Consultance Fees</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>                  8,770,520 </p></td><td><p>                11,408,749 </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Data Base Access & Retrival Charges</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>                  2,164,777 </p></td><td><p>                  2,256,678 </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Subscription Fees</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p> </p></td><td><p>                     893,461 </p></td><td><p>                     948,068 </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p> </p></td><td><p />                28,956,222 <p /></td><td><p />                38,030,671 <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p> </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p />Earnings in foreign exchange<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p> </p></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Business Support Service Fees ( Export Income)</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>                33,550,243 </p></td><td><p>                40,875,176 </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p>Investment Banking Service Fees</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>                               -   </p></td><td><p>                     175,007 </p></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr><tr><td><p /> <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />                33,550,243 <p /></td><td><p />                41,050,183 <p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
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 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>(i) The accompanying financial statements are prepared under historical cost conventions in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the applicable accounting standards referred to under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 as issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time. The disclosures are made in accordance with the requirements of Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards as applicable to the company.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>(ii) The Company is following mercantile system of accounting and recognizes Income & Expenditure on Accrual basis except for Dividend Income, Bonus, and other retirement benefits to employees etc. which are accounted on cash basis.</p></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><table><tbody><tr><td><p>b)   Use of Estimates</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses during the period. Differences between actual and estimates are recognized in the period in which the result are known or are materialised.</p></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p />
 <table><tbody><tr><td><p>m)   Earning Per Share</p></td></tr><tr><td><p>The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting Standard-20 Earnings per share prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.</p></td></tr><tr><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.</p></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><table><tbody><tr><td><p>Note 23 Earning Per Share</p></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td><td><p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Particulars<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />For the year ended <br></br>31 March, 2021<p /></td><td><p /> For the year ended <br></br>31 March, 2020 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p />Earnings per share<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p> </p></td><td><p> </p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Basic & Diluted</p></td><td><p /></td><td><p> </p></td><td><p> </p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Net profit / (loss) for the year from continuing operations</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>      150,823,650 </p></td><td><p>         8,353,508 </p></td></tr><tr><td><p />Net profit / (loss) for the year<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />      150,823,650 <p /></td><td><p />         8,353,508 <p /></td></tr><tr><td><p>Weighted average number of equity shares</p></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p>        26,107,941 </p></td><td><p>       26,107,941 </p></td></tr><tr><td><p>Par value per share</p></td><td><p /> <p /></td><td><p>                 10.00 </p></td><td><p>                10.00 </p></td></tr><tr><td><p />Earnings per share<p /></td><td> &nbsp;</td><td><p />                   5.78 <p /></td><td><p />                  0.32 <p /></td></tr></tbody></table><p></p><p>  </p>
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 <p /><p> </p><p>To the Members of </p><p>BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED </p><p>Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements </p><p /><p>Opinion </p><p>We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries and associates listed in Annexure I (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). </p><p>In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2021, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. </p><p>Basis for Opinion </p><p>We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Act. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. </p><p>Key Audit Matters </p><p>Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.</p><p /><p> </p><p>Other Information</p><p>The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. </p><p>Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.</p><p>If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. Based on above we state that:-</p>

<p />
As considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of foreign subsidiaries/local associates, the financial statements/financial information have not been audited by us. These financial statements/ financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries/associates, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
<p /><p />
With regards to above mention foreign subsidiaries company, two subsidiaries whose financial statements and other financial information have been prepared and audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The holding company’s management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. 
<p /><p />
We have audited these conversion adjustment made by the holding company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the holding company and audited by us.
<p /><p />
We did not audit the financial statement of one associates whose financial statements reflects total assets of Rs.24,84,27,723/- (P.Y: of Rs. 25,45,88,055/-) and net assets of Rs. /- (P.Y: 24,89,91,402/-) as at 31st March-2021, total revenue of Rs.3,96,994 /-(P.Y: 5,10,026/- for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements.
<p /><p />
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.
<p /><p /><p> </p><p>Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements </p><p>The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the entities included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each entity and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.</p><p>In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors of the entities included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each entity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.</p><p>The respective Board of Directors of the entities included in the Group is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each entity.</p><p>Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements </p><p>Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.</p><p>As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: </p><p>Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.</p><p>Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the entity has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. </p>

<p />
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
<p /><p />
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group (Holding company and subsidiaries) to cease to continue as a going concern.
<p /><p />
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
<p /><p />
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of such entities. 
<p /><p>We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements. </p><p>We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. </p><p>We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. </p><p>From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.</p><p>Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements </p><p>As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that: </p>

<p />
We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.
<p /><p />
In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
<p /><p />
The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 
<p /><p />
In our opinion, read with “Other Matter” the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Accounting Standard (AS) – 30 on ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
<p /><p />
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India, as on 31 March 2021 and taken on record by the Board of Directors of respective companies, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
<p /><p />
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A.
<p /><p />
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
<p /><p />


<p />
There are no pending litigations on the consolidated financial position as on 31st march 2021.
<p /><p /><p />
There is no provision required to be made, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts. 
<p /><p />
There has been no requirement to transfer amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2021.
<p /><p /><p>For AGARWAL SANGANERIA & CO.</p><p>Chartered Accountants</p><p>F.R.No. 317224E</p><p /><p> </p><p>SAKET SANGANERIA, FCA Place: Mumbai </p><p>Partner Date: 11th October, 2021</p><p>I.C.A.I. M. No. 300679</p><p />UDIN: 21300679AAAAEK7907<p /><p /><p> </p><p> </p><p>Annexure I: </p><p>List of Subsidiaries consolidated as at 31 March 2021</p><table><tbody><tr><td>

<p />
Krypton Intra Private Limited</td></tr><tr><td><p />
Maximus Investment Advisory Pvt. Ltd.</td></tr><tr><td><p />
Neem Tree Insurance Broking & Advisory Pvt. Ltd.</td></tr><tr><td><p />
Panna & Prajna Art Advisory Private Limited</td></tr><tr><td><p />
B&K Securities Limited UK</td></tr><tr><td><p />
B&K Securities Pte.Limited- Singapore
</td></tr></tbody></table><p /><p>List of Associates as at 31 March 2021</p>

<p />
M. M. MURARKA SHARE & SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
<p /><p />
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report
<p /><p>Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) </p><p>In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of BATLIVALA & KARANI SECURITIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Holding Company”) as of 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are incorporated in India as of that date. </p><p>Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls </p><p>The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Holding company and its subsidiaries, which are incorporated in India, considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective entity’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. </p><p>Auditor’s Responsibility </p><p>Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. </p><p>Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. </p><p>We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial control system with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India. </p><p>Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements </p><p>A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; Consolidated Financial Statements provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. </p><p>Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements </p><p>Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. </p><p>Opinion </p><p>In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India, considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.</p><p>For AGARWAL SANGANERIA & CO.</p><p>Chartered Accountants</p><p>F.R.No. 317224E</p><p /><p>SAKET SANGANERIA, FCA Place: Mumbai </p><p>Partner , I.C.A.I. M. No. 300679 Date: 11th October, 2021 </p>








<p />UDIN: 21300679AAAAEK7907<p /><p>  </p>
 false
 false
 The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 0
 KPR Mill Ltd
 Investments in mutual funds
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 7442798
 Caplin Point Ltd
 Investments in mutual funds
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 0
 HDFC Chairty fund for cancer care (Mutual Fund Units)
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments
 UNQUOTED
 19040000
 Batlivala & Karani Capital Pvt. Ltd.
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments
 UNQUOTED
 72688106
 Batlivala & Karani Resources Management Pvt. Ltd.
 Other non-current investments
 Other investments
 UNQUOTED
 3097142
 Sankalp Retail Value Stores Private Limited
 Other non-current investments
 Other investments
 UNQUOTED
 6410000
 M.M. Murarka Share & Securities Pvt. Ltd
 Other non-current investments
 Other investments
 UNQUOTED
 54000
 Indian Oil LNG
 Investments in mutual funds
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 99995000
 3,29430.594 Units (P.Y Nil) at face value of Rs. 10/-each in ICICI Liquid MF
 Other non-current investments
 Other investments
 UNQUOTED
 0
 Third Watch
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 0
 Himmatsingka Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 4964875
 Sagar Cement Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 0
 Automotive Axles Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 6039954
 Asian Granito India Ltd.
 Other non-current investments
 Other investments
 UNQUOTED
 20574335
 Capital Contribution (15%) (As at 31 March, 2019: Nil) in Batlivala & Karani
 Other non-current investments 
 Other investments 
 UNQUOTED
 112106812
 M.M. Murarka Share & Securities Pvt. Ltd
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 QUOTED
 10866781
 88,000 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Kirloskar Ferrous Industries Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 QUOTED
 10254935
 12,400 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Kajaria Ceramics Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 QUOTED
 19486596
 32,651 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Ramco Systems Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 QUOTED
 7923418
 7,450 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Triton Valves Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 QUOTED
 1842941
 3,000 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Rajratan Global Wire Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 QUOTED
 8872606
 88,000 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Thirumalai Chemicals Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 QUOTED
 22281279
 9,700 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of SKF India Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 QUOTED
 10450941
 5,20,000(P.Y Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of C.G Power & Solutions Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 QUOTED
 13035969
 27900 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- of Century Textiles Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 QUOTED
 7807217
 43,000 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Apcotex Lat Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 QUOTED
 7242120
 12,400 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Kansai Nerolac Paints Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 QUOTED
 4837636
 34,000(P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of Bhansali Engineering Polymers ltd
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments 
 QUOTED
 4405915
 43,000 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of  Sakar Healthcare Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 1505186
 Prozone Intu Properties Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 1228287
 KPR Mill Ltd
 Investments in mutual funds
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 4977321
 Caplin Point Ltd
 Investments in mutual funds
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 2000000
 HDFC Chairty fund for cancer care (Mutual Fund Units)
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments
 UNQUOTED
 19040000
 Batlivala & Karani Capital Pvt. Ltd.
 Investment in subsidiaries equity instruments
 Other investments
 UNQUOTED
 72688102
 Batlivala & Karani Resources Management Pvt. Ltd.
 Other non-current investments
 Other investments
 UNQUOTED
 3097142
 Sankalp Retail Value Stores Private Limited
 Other non-current investments
 Other investments
 UNQUOTED
 6410000
 M.M. Murarka Share & Securities Pvt. Ltd
 Other non-current investments
 Other investments
 UNQUOTED
 54000
 Indian Oil LNG
 Other non-current investments
 Other investments
 UNQUOTED
 112258892
 M.M. Murarka Share & Securities Pvt. Ltd.
 Other non-current investments
 Other investments
 UNQUOTED
 1918670
 Third Watch
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 12244847
 Himmatsingka Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 11800081
 Sagar Cement Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 0
 SAMKRG Pistons & Rings Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 10192849
 Jay Bharat Maruti Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 13370616
 Automotive Axles Ltd.
 Investment in other Indian companies equity instruments
 Other investments
 QUOTED
 0
 Asian Granito India Ltd.
 Other non-current investments
 Other investments
 UNQUOTED
 20532270
 Capital Contribution (15%) (As at 31 March, 2019: Nil) in Batlivala & Karani
 Auditors firm
 AGARWAL SANGANERIA & CO.
 Saket Sanganeria
 317224E
 300679
 208, Maker Bhawan 3, 21  New Marine Lines, Mumbai- 400020
 AADFA8676M
 G72497522
 2021-10-11
 2021-10-11
 Krypton Intra Private Limited
 Indian Subsidiary
 35133847
 0.46
 139815
 0.77
 Maximus Investment Advisory Pvt. Ltd.
 Indian Subsidiary
 -3116611
 -0.04
 -140130
 -0.78
 Neem Tree Insurance Broking & Advisory Pvt. Ltd.
 Indian Subsidiary
 43205519
 0.56
 195214
 1.08
 Panna & Prajna Art Advisory Private Limited
 Indian Subsidiary
 1316663
 0.02
 -14191
 -0.08
 B&K Securities Limited UK
 Foreign Subsidiary
 0
 0
 0
 0
 B&K Securities Pte.Limited- Singapore
 Foreign Subsidiary
 518781
 0.01
 0
 0
 Krypton Intra Private Limited
 INDIA
 .51
 .51
 NA
 Maximus Investment Advisory Pvt. Ltd.
 INDIA
 .9999
 .9999
 NA
 Neem Tree Insurance Broking & Advisory Pvt. Ltd.
 INDIA
 .9987
 .9987
 NA
 Panna & Prajna Art Advisory Private Limited
 INDIA
 .9736
 .9736
 NA
 B&K Securities Limited UK
 UNITED KINGDOM
 1
 1
 NA
 B&K Securities Pte.Limited- Singapore
 SINGAPORE
 1
 1
 NA
 M M MURARKA SHARE & SEECURITIES PVT LTD
 INDIA
 AABCM7219F
 U67110WB1995PTC076260
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Associate
 Reimbursement of expenses, rent paid
 120000
 97836
 0
 0
 BATLIVALA & KARANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AABCB7986Q
 U67190WB1992PTC053980
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
 Brokerage Received, loans and advances given and taken
 0
 1033929
 54418820
 240848
 13700000
 0
 0
 Jitendra Soni
 INDIA
 AXPPS8968R
 NA
 Key Management Personnel
 Director Remuneration
 4444666
 0
 0
 Saahil Murarka
 INDIA
 AOLPM0168G
 NA
 Key Management Personnel
 Membership fees, Director Remuneration
 0
 15767604
 0
 0
 Batlivala & Karani
 INDIA
 AAAFB6997K
 NA
 Others
 Rent Paid
 1800000
 0
 0
 M. Murarka (HUF)
 INDIA
 AADHM0291A
 NA
 Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
 Rent paid
 0
 120000
 0
 0
 MAXIMUS INVESTMENT ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AADCM9790P
 U67190MH2004PTC148069
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Subsidiary company
 Loan advances given
 0
 16480000
 0
 0
 NEEM TREE INSURANCE BROKING & ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AACCK7371H
 U67200WB2005PTC106149
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Subsidiary company
 loan and advances given and taken, Reimbursement
 1615000
 2315000
 0
 0
 PANNA & PRAJNA ART ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED.
 INDIA
 U74994WB2008PTC123648
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Subsidiary company
 Loan and advances given and taken, Reimbursement
 200000
 0
 0
 B & K Securities Pte. Ltd.
 SINGAPORE
 200513960K
 NA
 Subsidiary company
 NA
 50000
 683758
 0
 0
 VINHAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AACCV3953G
 U72200DL2006PTC145810
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Associate
 rent paid, reimbursement of expenses
 0
 0
 M M MURARKA SHARE & SEECURITIES PVT LTD
 INDIA
 AABCM7219F
 U67110WB1995PTC076260
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Associate
 Reimbursement of expenses, rent paid
 0
 120000
 216778
 17035
 0
 0
 BATLIVALA & KARANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AABCB7986Q
 U67190WB1992PTC053980
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
 Brokerage Received, loans and advances given and taken
 3381568
 45417000
 28598700
 2214916
 39818300
 0
 0
 Manoj Murarka
 INDIA
 AENPM6243E
 NA
 Key Management Personnel
 Membership fees, Director Remuneration
 0
 220800
 5000000
 0
 0
 Jitendra Soni
 INDIA
 AXPPS8968R
 NA
 Key Management Personnel
 Director Remuneration
 4052670
 0
 0
 Batlivala & Karani
 INDIA
 AAAFB6997K
 NA
 Others
 Rent Paid
 0
 1800000
 0
 0
 M. Murarka (HUF)
 INDIA
 AADHM0291A
 NA
 Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
 Rent paid
 0
 120000
 0
 0
 MAXIMUS INVESTMENT ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AADCM9790P
 U67190MH2004PTC148069
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Subsidiary company
 Loan advances given
 600000
 1500000
 16480000
 0
 0
 NEEM TREE INSURANCE BROKING & ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED
 INDIA
 AACCK7371H
 U67200WB2005PTC106149
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Subsidiary company
 loan and advances given and taken, Reimbursement
 1800000
 12000000
 18900
 700000
 0
 0
 PANNA & PRAJNA ART ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED.
 INDIA
 U74994WB2008PTC123648
 Registrar of Company Affairs
 Subsidiary company
 Loan and advances given and taken, Reimbursement
 50000
 200000
 0
 0
 Saahil Murarka
 INDIA
 AOLPM0168G
 NA
 Key Management Personnel
 Membership fees, Director Remuneration
 5675004
 0
 0
 B & K Securities Pte. Ltd.
 SINGAPORE
 200513960K
 NA
 Subsidiary company
 NA
 683758
 0
 0
 
 
 9,700 (P.Y: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- of SKF India Ltd.
 
 
 Other Trade receivables  :  35949159
Oustanding more than six month from the date they are due for payment  :  5142985
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(pledged with IRDA as security)  :  13270112
Fixed Deposits (with more than 12 months maturity)  :  26994830
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Bank Guarantee for Stock Exchange Margins#  :  99434575
Fixed Deposit with Axis Bank  :  64445785
Miscellaneous Expenditure (To the extent to be written off or adjusted within 12 months)  :  21377380
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